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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of Casa Grande Civil Engineering Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Casa Grande Civil Engineering
Private Limited ("the Company") which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023 and the
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended, including the statement of Other Comprehensive
Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement ofChanges in Equity for the year then ended,
and notes to the Ind AS financial statements, including a summary ofsignificant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best ofour information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act,20l3 ("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the

accounting standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, and accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 3lst 2023, its Profit including other
comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those

Standards are further described in the 'Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS
Financial Statements' section ofour report. We are independent ofthe Company in accordance with
the'Code ofEthics' issued by the Institute ofChartered Accountants oflndia together with the ethical

requirements that are relevant to our audit ofthe financial statements under the provisions ofthe Act
and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information

comprises the information included in the Annual report but does not include the Ind AS financial

statements and our auditor's report thereon.
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In connection with our audit ofthe Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact, We have nothing to report
in this regard.

Management's Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements
The Company's board of directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements
that give a true and fair view ofthe financial position, financial performance and cash flows ofthe
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
accounting standards prescribed under Section 133 ofthe Act read with rule 3 of the Companies
(lndian Accounting Standards) Rules,2015 as amended.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate intemal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as

a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material it
individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions

ofusers taken on the basis ofthese Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

' Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements,

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,

and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

The risk ofnot detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one

resulting from error, as fraud may involve coltusion, forgery. intentional omissions.
misrepresentations, or the override of intemal control. I I I

. Obtain an understanding of intemal control relevant to the audit in oriler to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143 (3)(i) of the'Aci, we

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concem and using the going concem basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic altemative but to do so.



are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate

intemal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concem basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concem. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, ifsuch disclosures are inadequate, to modiff our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date ofour auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concem.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions ofa reasonably knowledgeable user ofthe
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors
in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with govemance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing ofthe audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in intemal control that we identifi during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
l. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), issued by the Central

Govemment of India in terms of sub-section (1 1) of Section 143 ofthe Companies Act,2013,
we enclose in the Annexure - B, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 ofthe
said Order.

2. As required by Section 143 (3) ofthe Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes ofour audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as appears from our examination of those books.

G :,,,

C$ENNAI



(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other

Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt

with by this Report are in agreement with the books ofaccount;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 201 5, as amended;

(e) On the basis ofthe written representations received from the directors as on March 31,2023
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March
3l,2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) ofthe Act;

(1) With respect to the adequacy of the intemal financial controls over financial reporting ofthe
Company with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and the operating effectiveness
of such controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure B" to this report; Our report
expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the
company's intemal financial controls over financial reporting.

@) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors' Report under Section 197(16) of
the Act, in our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
limit prescribed by section 197 for maximum permissible managerial remuneration is not
applicable to a private limited company.

(, With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors' Report in accordance with
Rule 1l ofthe Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best

ofour information and according to the explanations given to us:

i The Company has disclosed pending litigations and the impact on its financial position
- refer note 42 to the Standalone Financial Statements.

fr. The company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

fr. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the lnvestor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than
as disclosed in the notes to the accounts,

No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed
funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company
to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entities 'Intermediaries',
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalfofthe
company 'Ultimate Beneficiaries' or provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

cH(

(
z

\
NNAI



ii. No funds have been received by the company from any person or entity,
including foreign entities 'Funding Pades', with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party 'Ultimate Beneficiaries' or
provide any guarantee, secudty or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

iii. Based on audit procedures carried out by us, that we have considered
reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our
notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause
(D and (iD contain any material misstatement.

v. The Company has not declared or paid any dividends during the year and accordingly
reporting on the compliance with section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not
applicable for the year under consideration.

vi As proviso to Rule 3(1) ofthe Companies (Accounts) Rules,20l4 (as amended), which
provides for books of account to have the feature of audit trail, edit log and related
matters in the accounting software used by the Company, is applicable to the Company
only with effect from financial year beginning April 1,2023, the reporting under clause
(g) of Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), is
currently not applicable.

FoT CNGSN & ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants

F.R.No. - 00491 5S/S200036

Place: Chennai
Date:09-08-2023

C N GANGADARAN
Partner

Membership No. 01 1205

UDN No. 2301 1 205BGPIJYS1 845



(b) According to the records of the Company and information and explanations given to
us, the Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess ofRs. Five
crores, in aggregate from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of
current assets during the year. Accordingly, clause clause ii(b) ofPara 3 ofCompanies
(Auditors Report) Order 2020 is not applicable.

a) In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, the Company has
made loans in the nature ofunsecured loans to companies and Limited Liability Partnership.
The aggregate amount oftransaction during the year and balance outstanding at the balance
sheet date with respect to loan to holding company, subsidiary cpmpanies and fellow
subsidiary companies is mentioned in the following table:

J

Annexure "A" to the Independent Auditor's Report

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under 'Report on other legal and regulatory requirements' section ofour
report to the members of Casa Grande Civil Engineering Private Limited of even date)

1. Fixed assets:

a) (A) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the

Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including

quantitative details and situation ofproperty, plant and equipment'

(B) The Company does not have any intangible assets. Accordingly, clause i(a)(B) of
Para 3 of Companies (Auditors Report) Order 2020 is not applicable.

b) The property, plant and equipment of the Company were physically verified by the

management during the year. According to the information and explanations given to

us and as examined by us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

c) According to the information and explanations given to us, and on the basis of our

examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of all the immovable

properties (other than properties where the company is the lessee and the lease

agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) disclosed in the financial

statements are held in the name of the Company.

d) According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not

revalued its Property, plant and equipment during the year. Accordingly, clause clause

(i(d)) ofPara 3 of Companies (Auditors Report) Order 2020 is not applicable.

e) The company does not hold any Benami property under the Benami Transactions

(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder. Accordingly, clause

(i(e)) ofPara 3 of Companies (Auditors Report) Order 2020 is not applicable.

2. Inventories:

(a) The inventories held by the company comprise of Construction materials, land stock
and work in progress of Projects under development and construction. Physical
verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the
management and in our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification by
the management is appropriate, and no discrepancies of l07o or more in the ag$egate
for each class of inventory were noticed on such verification.
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(Rs.

Million
In

b) In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, guarantees

provided and the terms and conditions ofthe grant ofall loans and advances in the nature

ofloans and guarantees provided are not prejudicial to the company's interest.

d) In the absence of stipulated schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest,
we are unable to comment as to whether there is any amount which is overdue for more
than 90 days.

e) In our opinion and according to the explanations given to us, no loans or advance in the
nature of loan granted which has fallen due during the year, has been renewed or
extended or fresh loans have been granted to settle the overdues ofexisting loans given
to the same parties. Since the terms of arrangement do not stipulate any repayment
schedule and the loans are repayable on demand, we are unable to comment on the same.

f) In our opinion and according to the explanations given to us, the company has granted
loans or advances in the nature of loans during the year either repayable on demand or
without speciffing any terms or period of repayment are as follow:

Security Loans
Advances in

nature of
loans

Guarantee

16.56

2,267.38

1,350

720

1,350

502.99

1410.77

320.36

139.96

Balance outstanding as at balance

sheet date in respect of above cases

- Subsidiaries

- Holding company

- Associates/Joint Ventures

- Fellow subsidiaries

- Others

144.22

7.95

720

Aggregate amount granted/ provided
during the year

- Subsidiaries

- Holding company

- Associates

- Fellow subsidiaries

- Others

c) In our opinion and according to the explanations given to us in respect of loans and
advances in the nature ofloans, the schedule of repayment ofprincipal and interest has

not been stipulated as the repayments are on demand.
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Particulars Amount
(ln Millions)

Aggregate amount of loans/ advances in nature of loans

- Agreement does not specifr any terms or period of repayment

2,436.11

Percentage to total loans granted 100%

Aggregate Amount granted to Promoters, Related parties
as defined in clause (76) ofsection 2 ofthe
Companies Act,2013

2,436.11

4. In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, in respect of loans,

investments, guarantees and security, the Company has complied with the provisions ofsections
185 and section 186 ofthe Companies Act,2013.

5. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from the public
within the meaning ofSections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions ofthe Act and rules
framed thereunder, and hence reporting under clause (v) ofthe Order is not applicable.

6. We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the company pursuant to the

rules made by the Central Govemment for the maintenance of cost records under section 148 of
the Act, and are of the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been

made and maintained. However, we have not carried out a detailed examination of the same.

7. In respect of statutory dues:

a) According to the records of the Company and information and explanations given to us,
the Company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods and
Service tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, cess and any other
statutory dues with the appropriate authorities. There are no undisputed statutory dues
outstanding for more than six months, except the following:

Name of the
Statue

Nature of
Dues

Period for
which the
amount
relates

Remarks, if any

Date of
Payment

Income Tax Act,
1961

Income
Tax- TDS

Penalty
Interest

0.006 F.Y.22-23

Interest
Outstanding as

on 3 1't March
2023

Central Goods and
Services Tax Act,

2017

GST-
Penalty
Interest

1.08 F.Y.22-23

Interest
Outstanding as
on 3 l't March

2023

Amount
(Rs.in

Millions)



Central Goods and
Services Tax Act,

2017

GST-
Penalty
Interest

0.20 F.Y.21-22

Interest
Outstanding as
on 3l't March

2023

02-08-20
23

b) As at 3l't March 2023 according to the records of the Company, the following are the
particulars ofthe statutory dues which have not been deposited on account ofdispute:

Name of the
Statue

Nature of Dues
Forum Where the

Dispute
is Pending

Period to
which the

amount relates

Amount
(Rs. in

Millions)
Income tax

Act, 1961

Income Tax on
disallowance of
expenditure for

AY 15-16

AY 15-16 0.58

Income Tax on
disallowance of
expenditure for

AY t6-17

Income Tax Appellate
Tribunal, Chennai

AY 16-17

Income tax
Act, 1961

Income Tax on
disallowance of
expenditure for

AY 17-18

Commissioner of Income
Tax (Appeals), Chennai

AY 17-18 63.62

Income tax
Act, 1961

Income Tax on
disallowance of
expenditure for

AY 18-19

Income Tax Appellate
Tribunal, Chennai

AY 18-19

72.06

8. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no
transactions not recorded in the books of account that have been surrendered or disclosed as

income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961. Accordingly,
clause (i(e)) ofPara 3 of Companies (Auditors Report) Order 2020 is not applicable.

9.

a) Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations given
to us by the management, we are of the opinion that the Company has not defaulted in
repayment of loans or borrowings to any lenders.

b) According to the records of the Company and information and explanations given to us,
the company is not a declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
other lender. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to
us, the term loans obtained during the year were applied for the purpose for which they
were availed.

c) According to the records of the Company and information and explanations given to us,
term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans wore obtained, as per Note
No.1 8 in the audited financial statements.

Commissioner of Income
Tax (Appeals), Chennai

Income tax
Act, 1961

2.22



d) According to the records of the Company and information and explanations given to us,

there are no funds raised on short term basis that have been utilized for long-term
purposes.

e) In our opinion, the company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on
account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, ztssociates or joint ventures.
Accordingly, clause (ix(e)) of Para 3 of Companies (Auditors Report) Order 2020 is not
applicable.

f) In our opinion, the company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of
securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies. Accordingly,
clause (ix(f1) of Para 3 ofCompanies (Auditors Report) Order 2020 is not applicable.

10.

a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not raised any money by way ofan initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, clause(x)(a) of the
Order is not applicable.

b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
convertible debentures (fully, partially, or optionally convertible) during the year.
Accordingly, paragraph 3 (x) (b) ofthe Order is not applicable.

11.

a) To the best ofour knowledge and according to the information and explanations given
to us, no fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company by any person has
been noticed or reported during the year. Accordingly, clause(xi)(a) ofthe Order is not
applicable.

b) In our opinion, report under sub-section ( 12) of section 143 of Companies Act and form
ADT-4 is not required to be filed by the auditors as clause xi (a) is not applicable.
Accordingly, clause (xi(b)) of Para 3 of Companies (Auditors Report) Order 2020 is not
applicable.

c) According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not received
whistle-blower complaints during the year. Accordingly, clause (xi(c)) of Para 3 of
Companies (Auditors Report) Order 2020 is not applicable.

12. In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, clause (xii(a), xii(b), xii(c)
of Para 3 of Companies (Auditors Report) Order 2020 are not applicable.

13. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions
with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 and
the details have been disclosed in the standalone Ind AS Financial Statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

t4.

a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has an intemal audit system to commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

b) The reports of the intemal auditors for the period under audit have been considered by
us.



15. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has

not entered into any non - cash transactions with directors or persons connected with the
Directors. Accordingly, clause (xv) of Para 3 ofCompanies (Auditors Report) Order 2020 is not
applicable.

16.

a) In our opinion, the company is not required to be registered under section 45 IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions ofclause(xvi) (a) and
(b) ofthe Order are not applicable.

b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) and it does not have any other
companies in the Group as a CIC. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(b) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations
made by the Reserve Bank oflndia. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(c) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

d) Based on the information and explanation provided by the Management of the Company,
the Group does not have any CICs, which are part ofthe Group. We have not, however,
separately evaluated whether the information provided by the Management is accurate
and complete. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

17. The Company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately preceding
financial year. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xvii) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

18. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly,
clause(xviii) ofthe Order is not applicable.

19. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis ofthe financial ratios
(Also refer Note 44 to the financial statements), ageing and expected dates of realisation of
financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the
financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based

on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our

attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the

audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date ofBalance
Sheet as and when they fall due within a period ofone year from the Balance Sheet date. We,

however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further
state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date ofthe audit report and we neither give

any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period ofone year from
the Balance Sheet date will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

20.

a) In our opinion, in respect ofother than ongoing projects, as per the limits specified u/s 135

ofthe Companies Act 2013, the Company is not liable to transfer unspent amount to a Fund

specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act within a period of six months of the expiry
of the financial year in compliance with second proviso to sub-lection (5) ofsection 135 of
the said Act

CHENI
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b) In our opinion, there is no amount remaining unspent under sub-section (5) of section 135

ofthe Companies Act, pursuant to any ongoing project.

21. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does

not have investments in subsidiaries/ associates orjoint venture companies. Accordingly, clause
(xxi) ofthe Order is not applicable.

FoT CNGSN & ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants

F.R.No. - 004915S/S200036

Place: Chennai
Date:09-08-2023

C N GANGADARAN
Partner

Membership No. 011205

UDIN No. 2301 1 205BGPUYS1 845
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Annexure "B" to the Independent Auditor's Report

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under'Report on other legal and regulatory requirements' section of
our report to the members of Casa Grande Civil Engineering Private Limited of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the intemal financial controls over financial reporting of Casa Grande Civil
Engineering Private Limited ("the Company") as of March 31,2023, in conjunction with our audit

of the Ind AS financial statements ofthe Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining intemal financial
controls based on the intemal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company

considering the essential components of intemal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Intemal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered

Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance

of adequate intemal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and

efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding

of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness ofthe
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under

the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's intemal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Intemal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing as specified under
section 143(10) ofthe Companies Act,2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of intemal financial
controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable ilssurance about whether adequate intemal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial
statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of intemal financial controls over financial
reporting included obtaining an understanding of intemal financial controls over financial reporting
with reference to these Ind AS financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of intemal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment ofthe risks ofmaterial misstatement ofthe financial statements, whether due to fraud or
etTor.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the intemal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to
these Ind AS financial statements.



Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with Reference to these

Financial Statements
A Company's intemal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS
financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
off,rnancial reporting and the preparation offinancial statements for extemal purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles.

A company's intemal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS
financial statements includes those policies and procedures that:

(l) pertain to the maintenance ofrecords that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets ofthe company;

(2) provide reasonable assuftmce that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation

of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures ofthe company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors ofthe company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with Reference

to these Ind AS Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of intemal financial controls over financial reporting with

reference to these Ind AS financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper

management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not

be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial

reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk

that the internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial

statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of

compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate'

Opinion
In'our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over

financiai reporting with ieference to these Ind AS financial statements and such intemal financial

controls over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements were operating

.rr..,i".rv as at March T,2;n, based on the intemal control over financial reporting criteria

established by the company 
"onrid..ing 

the essential components of internal control stated in the

Guidance Note on Audit of Intemal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India

For CNGSN & ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants

F.R.No. - 00491 5S/S200036

Place: Chennai

Date: 09-08-2023

C N GANGADARAN
Partner

MembershiP No. 011205

UDIN No. 2301 1 205BGPUYS1 845
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Casa Grande Civil Engineering Privatc Limited
Balance Sheel as at 3l March 202.1

(A ll amounts are in lllillions, unless otheneise stated)

l'xrt iculil rs
As at

Notes 3l March 2023
As at

31 March 2022
As at

01 April 2021

Assets

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

lnvestment properties

Right-of-use assets

Financial assels

lnvestments

Other financial assets

Other assets

Deferred tax assets (net)

Current assets

lnventories
Financial assets

Trade receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances other than cash and cash

equiYalents

Investments

Loans

Other financial assets

Other cunent assets

Cunent ta\ asset (net)

Total asscts

Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital

Other equity

Total equity

Non-current liabilities
Financial Iiabilitics

Borrowings
Lease liabilities
Other fi nancial liabilities

Provisions

Other non-cunent liabilities

7 4.32

51 .41

7.t2

77.10

51.41

8.01

53.3 8

5l.41
8.90

0.10

85.56

25.96

t 2l .89

53.93

16.06

182.87

3

4

5

6

8

9

10

0.10
't9.49

16.06

6s.07

366.36 237.21 .366.55

3,605.231l

t2
l3

t4

6

?

8

9

l5

16

t'7

354.53

r 05.10

77 3.t3
30.1 3

20.54

I,672.91

58.79

2.60

3,626.8 r

38.28

5.00

2,374.09

239.94

77.07

2,4'7 t.t9

1,318.78

3',17.14

24.22

2 88.8 5

54.06

5 0.98

9.61

6.820.82 5.015.1J 5,743.02

______4-qzJ-q_ s,2s2.37 6,109.57

0.10

| ,242.1s

0.10

|,229.94
0.10

65 5.5 3

____i2a2L ___-__1!t!{L_ 655.63

l8
23
't9

20

2t

l,868.59

7.62

23.84

r 1.99

737.24

889.67

7.91

8.86
't.41

I,327 .07

21.77

8.35

6.t9
992.25

2,649.28 {0.92 _____!q28.s6

.,17,A,'*
i( ( tltN$rr l
s .. ./,,



Casa Grande Civil Engineering Private Limited
Balance Shcet as at Jl March 202J

(All qmounts qre in Millions, unless olhentise slqled)

Particulars
As at

Notes 31 March 2023
As at

3l March 2022
As at

0l April 2021

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities

Borrowings
Lease liabilities
Trade payables

Dues to micro small and medium enterprises

Dues to others

Other financial liabilities
Other cunent liabilities
Provisions

Liabilities for current tax (net)

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

Accompanying notes to the Financial Statements

As per our report ofeven date

For CNGSN & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number : 04915S

CN.Ganga

s97 .30

15.15

409.40

94.94

t93.7 |

0.21

37.65

781.4t 4.425.39

5.9,t4.93 4,022.33 s,4s3.9s

7.t 87.18 5,252.37 ______qJ_q218

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For Casa Grande Civil Engineering Private Limited
CIN:U 2013PTC094127

Arun MN Raghunathan
Sumanth Krishna
Director
DIN: 07640054

Place : Chennai

Date:09.08.2023

L

a01

18

23

524.52

0.30

I ,030.12
0.23

22

22

l9
21

20

l5

188.97

462.39

278.27

1,832.92

2.94

5.34

3,295.65

't7.89

714.69

7.16

3,088.24

0.1I

t-2

n

Partner

Membership Number : 0l 1205

Place:Chennai

Date:09.08.2023

Director
DIN: 00793551

2
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I
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\\\N\
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Cssa Grande Civil Engineering Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March, 2023

(All amounts are in Millions, unless otherwise staled)

Notes
For the year ended

3l March 2023
For the year ended

3l March 2022

lncome

Revenue from contracts with customers

Other income

Total income

Expenses

Cost ofraw materials, components and stores consumed

Construction activity expenses

(lncrease)/ decrease in stock offlats, land stock and work-in-
progress and traded goods

Employee benefits expense

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortization expense

Other expenses

Total expenses

ProfiU(loss) before tax
(l ) Cunent tax
(2) Deferred tax charge/(oedit)
lncome ta\ expense

Profit(loss) for the year

Other comprehensive income

Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit
or loss in subsequent periods:
Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans

Income tax effect

Net other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to
profit or loss in subsequeDt periods

Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax

Earnings per share

Basic, computed on the basis ofprofit for the year (ln {)
Diluted, computed on the basis ofprofit for the year (In t)

As per our report ofeven date

For CNGSN & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number : 049 | 55

C.N.Ga daran

Partner

Membership Number : 0l1205

Place : Chennai

Date:09.08.2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For Casa Grande Civil Ergineering Private Limited
CIN : U4 00TN20l3PTC094l27

run MN Raghunathan

24

25

1,659.04

r 5.13

4,3'7 4.20

121.16

|,671.17 4.,t95.36

26

27

t,096.24

l,537 .2t

(1,074.01)

604.86

1,9,11.07

1,061.2028

29

30

3l
32

52.53

29.60

22.44

21.68

29.64

22.84

26.76

48.28

__L!!1!2_ 3,734.65

33

33

35

(l1.52)
30.98

(s6.2s)

(2s.27)

160.11

69.67

I17.51

187.1E

13.75 573.53

(2.06)

0.52

t.t7
(0.2e)

(1.s4) 0.88

0.88(r.51)

34

12.2t

1,37 5

1,37s

514.41

57,3s3

s7.353

Sumanth Krishna
Director
DIN: 07640054

c
A

0

n

E
0

N

H
0

c
6

oz

/.
I .:;

K 2

)iz

.*tn** )

\

Director
DIN: 00793551

Place : Chennai

Date : 09 .08 .2023

\
/



Casa Grande Civil Engineering Private Limited
St tement of Cash Flows for the year ended 3l March 2023

(All omounts ore in Millicns, unless othervise stqted)

Particulars

Operating actiYities
Profit(loss) before tax

Atljustments to reconcile proJit belore luu lo nel cssh fotts:
Depreciation and amortisation expenses

Depreciation and amortisation expenses ofROU
Adjustment for other comprehensive income/(expense)

Provision for Gratuity and Compensated leave

Finance income

lnterest on lease liabilities
Finance costs

Working capilal djuslmenls:
(lncrease)/decrease in trade receivables
(lncrease)/decrease in inventory
(lncrease)/decrease in other financial assets

(lncrease)/decrease in other current assets

lncrease/(decrease) in trade payables

Increase/(decrease) in other financial liability
Increase/(decrease) in other cunent liability
Cash generated from opcrating activities
Income tar (paid)hefunded

Net cash flows from/(used in) operating activities

InYesting actiyities
Purchase ofpropeny, plant and equipment

Purchase of financial instruments

Loan given to related parties

Movement in bank deposits (maturity of more than 3 months)

Investment in Subsidiaries

lflterest received

Net cash flolvs from(used in) iIlvesting actiyities

2t.55
0.E9

(2.06)
7.3t

(28s.23)

t.2l
299.85

25.87

0.89

t.t7
1.32

( 177.5 r)
1.24

138.67

418.60
( r,1s5.62)

81.73
(62.7 5)

226.81

125.04

I,049.38

899.78

I,134.04
( l 1s.84)

26.76
(308.03)

5.35

(2,559.71)

(l1.52) 7 60.',?1

7t5.19 (r6s.29)
(58.32) (22.41)

656.87 (r 87.70)

(r 8.77)
(5.00)

(r,0ss.3l)
(17 .7 4)

274.63

(49.59)

_______G?2!2r ( 1.092.n6)

ff:
(I( .n sn'

\qjY

As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

(1,029.94)
(t7 .94)

(0.10)

4.71

\



Casa Grande Civil Engineering Private Limited
Statement ofCash Flows for the year ended 3l March 2023

(All omounts are in Millions, unless olhent,ise slqled)

Particulars
As at

3l March 2023

As at
3l March 2022

Financing activities
Repayment of lease liabilities
lnterest paid

Proceeds fiom long term bonowings
Repayment of long term bonowings
Proceeds/(repayment) fiom shon term bonowings

Net cash flows from(used in) financing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning ofthe year

Cash and cash equivslents at year end

As per our report ofeven date

For CNGSN & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number: 04915S

.(i an ran

Partner

Membership Number : 0l 1205

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For Casa Grande Civil Engineering Private Limited
CIN I U45200TN2013PTC094127

run MN Raghunathan
Sumanth Krishna

Director
DIN: 07640054

Place : Chennai

Date:09.08.2023

(t.44)
(231.s9)

2,228.40
( 1,160.25)

(5e4.83)

(1.44)

(47.3e)

925.78
(240.22)

6 t 5.16

l,25t.89
74.97

30.13

105.10

(28.67)

58.79

30.12

Director

DIN: 00793551

Place : Chennai

Date:09.08.2023

5

.03!

:filii,

210.29
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Casa Grande Civil Engineering Private Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 3l March 2023

(All qmounts qre in Millions, unless olhenvise stated)

a. Equity share capital;

Equity shares oft l0 each

Numbers

Equity shares of < l0 each issued, subscribed and fully paid
As at 0l April 2022
Issue ofshare capital
As at 3l March 2023

b. Othcr equity

10,000 0.10

_____________l_qJu

10,000

0.10

0.10

10.000

llctaincd earninqs Totsl

As at 0l April 202t
Profit for the period

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income (loss)

As at 3l March 2022

As at 0l April 2022

Profit for the period

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income (loss)

As at 3l March 2023

As per our repon ofeven date

For CNGSN & Associates LLP
Chanered Accountants

Firm Registration Number : 049155

Partner

Membership Number : 011205

_____)22e!1 __ _J22e!1

1,229.94

13.7 5

(1.s4)

12.21

I 12.15 1.242.15

CIN : U45 00TN20|3PTC094 r 27

Arun MN Raghunathan
Sumanth Krishna
Director
DIN: 07640054

Place : Chennai

Date:09.08.2023

cUGitl

Director
DIN: 0079355 I

Place : Chennai

Date:09.08.2023
cliEi{
600 c\

)\

Amount
Equity shares of{ l0 each issued, subscribed and fully paid
As at 0l April 2021

Issue ofshare capital
As at 3l March 2022

_______________ !L

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For Casa Grande Civil Engineering Private Limited

6s5.53

573.53

0.88

57 4.4t

655.53

573.53

0.88

57{.41

1,229.94

13.75

(1.s4)

12.21

fl*v,"'lr----.--v GN.Ga{gadaran
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Casa Grande Civil Engineering Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 3l March 2023

(A ll amounts are in Million lndian rupees, unless otherwise stated)

l.Corporate information
Casa Grande Civil Engineering Private Limited (the 'Company') was incorporated on l2 December, 2013 under the

provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India ("Act"). The registered office is located at NPL DEVI, New no -11 l/3,
Old No.593/3, L.B.Road, Thiruvanmiyur, Chennai 600041.

The Company is engaged primarily in the business of real estate constructions, development and other related activities in

India.

The financial statements were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution ofthe directors on 9 August,2023.

2,Significant accounting policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements. These

policies have been consistently applied to all the periods presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

ln accordance with the notification issued by the MCA, the Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
specified under section 133 ofthe Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, zs amended and

presentation requirements ofDivision ll ofSchedule Ill to the Companies Act,2013 (Ind AS compliant Schedule III).

The standalone financial statements of the Company are prepared and presented in accordance with Ind AS. The standalone

financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments which are

measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below. Historical cost is
generally based on the fair value ofthe consideration given in exchange for goods and services. Upto 3l March 2022, the
Company prepared the financial statements in accordance with the previous GAAP, which includes the standards notified
under the Companies (Accounting standards) Rules, 2006 and other related provisions ofthe Companies Act, 2013. These are

the Company's first Ind AS financial statements. The statutory date oftransition to Ind AS is lst April, 2021.

2.2 Summary of other significant accounting policies

(a) Use of estimates

The preparation offinancial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to makejudgments, estimates and

assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on the management's best knowledge of
current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a

material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities. The effect of change in an accounting estimate is

recognized prospectively.

(b) Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on cuneny non-current classification.

An asset is treated as current when it is:

- Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
- Held primarily for the purpose oftrading
- Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or
- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least trvelve months afier

the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-curreul.

A liability is currenl when:
- lt is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
- It is held primarily for the purpose oftrading
- It is due to be scttled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
- There is no unconditional right to deler the settlement ofthe liability lor at least twelve mohths after the reponing period

All other liabilities are classified as non-current. : !



Casa Grande Civil Engineering Priyate Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 3l March 2023

(A ll amounts are in Million Indian rupees, unless otherwise staled)

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash

equivalents. The operating cycle of the Company's real estate operations varies from project to project depending on the size

of the project, type of development, project complexities and related approvals. Accordingly, project related assets and

liabilities are classified into current and non-current based on the operating cycle ofthe project. All other assets and liabilities
have been classified into current and noncurrent based on a period oftwelve months.

Deferred tax assets/ liabilities are classified as non-current assets/ liabilities.

(c) Property, plant and equipment

Alt properry, plant and equipment except freehold land are stated at historical cost less accumulated dcpreciation. The cost

cornprises purchase price, import duties, non-refundable taxes, borrowing costs if capitalization criteria are met and directly
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade discounts and rebates are

deducted in aniving at the purchase price.

Each part ofan item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost ofthe item is

depreciated separately. This applies mainly to components for machinery. When significant parts of plant and equipment are

required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise,
when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a
replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in profit or loss as

incurred.

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property, plant and equipment is added to its book value only if it increases the
future benefits from its previously assessed standard of performance. All other expenses on existing property, plant and

equipment, including day+o-day repair and maintenance expenditure and cost of replacing parts, are charged to the statement

ofprofit and loss for the period during which such expenses are incurred.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition of property, plant and equipment which take substantial period of tine to
get ready for its intended use are also included to the extent they relate to the period till such assets are ready to be put to use.

Advances paid towards the acquisition ofproperty, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date is classified as

capital advances under other non-current assets.

An item of property, plant and equipmenl and any significant part initially recognized is de-recognized upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount ofthe asset) is included in the income
statement when the Property, plant and equipment is de-recognized.

Expenditure directly relating to construction activity is capitalised. Indirect expenditure incurred during construction period is
capitalised to the extent to which the expenditure is indirectly related to construction or is incidental thereto. Other indirect
expenditure (including borrowing costs) incurred during the construction period which is not related to the construction
activity nor is incidental thereto is charged to the statement ofprofit and loss.

Costs ofassets not ready for use at the balance sheet date are disclosed under capital work- in- progress.

(d) Depreciation on property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation is calculated on written down value method using the following useftll lives estimated by the ntanagenrent,
which are equal to those prescribed under Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013, except certain categories ofassets whose
useful Iife is estimated by the management based on planned usage and technical evaluation thereon:

Assets Useful life
Buildings 60
Temporary Structures 3
Furniture & Fittings IO
Plant & Machinery :erTiJ- 12-t5
OIllce Equipment 5
Vehicles 8- l0
Computers 3
Servers and network eq-ipment 6

f,i .,,r**o'''\#
Leasehold improvements are antortised over the remaining period oflease or their estimsted useful life (10 years), rvhichever
is shorter.



Casa Grande Civil Engineering Private Limited
Notes to financial statcments for the year ended 3l March 2023

(A ll amounls are in Million Indian rupees, unless otherwise stated)

(g) Impairment

A. Financial assets

The Company assesses at each date of balance sheet whether a financial asset or a Conrpany of linanciat assets is impaired.
Ind AS 109 requires expected credit losses to be measured through a loss allorvance. The Company recognizes lifctime
expected losses for all contact assets and / or all trade receivables that do not constitute a financing transaction. For all other
financial assets, expected creCit losses are measured at an amount equal to the l2-rronth expected credit losses or at an
alnount equal to the life timc expecled credit losses if the credit iisk on the financial assct has increased sigrificantl_v since
initial recognition.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of propeny, plant and equipment and investment propert) are

revierved at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, ifappropriate.

(e) Intangible assets

lntangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible
assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairmenl losses, ifany.

Intangible assets comprising of computer software are amortized using written down value method over a period of three

years, which is estimated by the management to be the useful life ofthe asset.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of amortization of intangible assets are reviewed at each financial year end anC

adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Gains or losses arising fiom de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as thc difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying anlount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when asset is

derecopnized.

(f) Investment property

The Property that is held for long term rental yield or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by thb
Company is classified as an Investment Property. Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less accomulated deprecialion irnd

accumulated impairment loss, if any.

The cost includes the cost ofreplacing pa(s and borrowing costs for long{erm construction projects if the recognition ciiteria
are met. When significant parts of the investment property are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates

them separately bascd on their specific useful lives. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognizcd in profit or loss as

incurred.

Expenditure directly relating to construction activity is capitalised. Indirect expenditure incurred during corrstruction period is
capitalised to the extent to which the expenditure is indirectly related to construction or is incidental thereto. Other indilect
expenditure (including borrowing costs) incuned during the construction period which is not related to the constnlction
activity nor is incidental thereto is charged to the statement ofprofit and loss.

Investment properties are de-recognized when the entity transfers control of the same to the buyer. Further the entity also
derecognises investment properties when they are permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is
expected from their disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the canying amount of the asset is
recognized in profit or loss in the period of de-recognition.

Reclassification from /to iovestment property Transfers to (or from) investment property are nrhde only when there is a changc
in use. Transfers between investment property, owner-occupied property and inventories do not change the carrying amount of
the property transferred and they do not change the cost ofthat property for measurement or disclosure purposes

,,-'".;\f=(r
itCIlENNA!\



Casa Grande Civil Engineering Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts are in Million Indian rupees, unless olherwise staled)

B. Non-Iinancial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication
exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset's rBcoverable amount. An
asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit's (CGU) net selling price and its value in use.

The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or Company's of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CCU exceeds its
recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,

the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining net selling price, recent market
transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is
used.

Impairment losses are recognized in the statement of profit and loss. After impairment, depreciation is provided on thc
revised carrying amount ofthe asset over its remaining useful life

(h) Leases

The Company assesses a1 contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the
right to control the use ofan identified asset for a period oftime in exchange for consideration.

Where the Company is lessee

A contract is, or contains, a lease ifthe contract involves -
i. The use ofan identified asset,

ii. The right to obtain substantially all the economic benefits liom use ofthe identified asset, and
iii. The right to direct the use ofthe identified asset

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short{erm leases and leases of
low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets reprcsenting the
right to use the underlying assets.

A. Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is
available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-oiuse assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shofler of the lcase term and the
estimated useful lives ofthe assets.

If ownership of thc leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a
purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life ofthe asset.

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment.

B. Lease liabilities
At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be
paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the |ease, if the lease term reflects the
Company exercising the option to termiuate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised
as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce invenlodes) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the
payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incrernental bonorving rate at the leasc
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement tlate,
the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and rcduced for the lease payments made. In
addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured ifthere is a modification, a change in the. Iease term, a change
in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index oi rate used to detemline such
lease payments) or a change in the assessment ofan option to purchase lhe unclerlying asset.

I

'.|(t-/.t)



Casa Grande Civil trngineering Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 3l March 2023

(A ll amounts are in Million Indian rupees, unless otherwise stated)

C. Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases i.e., those leases that have a lease

term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option. It also applies the lease of low-
value assets recognition exemption lo leases that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and

leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straightJine basis over the lease term.

Where the Company is the lessor

Leases in which the Compcny does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership ofthe asset are

classified as operating leases. Assets subject to operating leases are included under Investment property.

Lease income from operating lease is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease including lease

income on fair value ofrefundable security deposits, unless the lease agreement explicitly states that increase is on account of
inflation. Costs, including depreciation, are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss. Initial direct costs

incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised
over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.

(i) Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the bonowing offunds.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a

substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized./inventorised as part of the cost of the
respective asset. All other bonowing costs are charged to statement ofprofit and loss.

The Company treats as part of general borrowings any borrowing originally made to develop a qualiSing asset when
substantially all ofthe activities necessary to prepare that asset for its intended use or sale are complete.

() Inventories
Direct expenditure relating to real estate activity is inventorised. Other expenditure (including borowing costs) during
construction period is inventorised to the extent the expenditure is directly attributable cost ofbringing the asset to its working
condition for its intended use. Other expenditure (including borrowing costs) incurred during the construction period rvhich is
not directly attributable for bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use is charged to the statement ofprofit
and loss. Direct and other expenditure is determined based on specific identification to the real estate activity.

i. Work-in-progress: Represents cost incurred in respect of unsold area (including land) of the real estate development
projects or cost incurred on projects where the revenue is yet to be recognized. Work-in-progress is valued at lower of cost
and net realizable value.
ii. Finished goods - Stock ofFlats: Valued at lower ofcost and net realizable value.

iii. Raw materials, components and stores: Valued at lower ofcost and net realizable value. Cost is determined based on FIFO
basis.

iv. Land stock: Valued at lower ofcost and net realizable value.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion en{
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

(k) Land
Advances paid by the Company to the seller/ intermediary toward outright purchase of land is recognized as land advance
under other assets during the coutse of obtaining clear and marketable title, free from all encumbrances and transfer ol legal
title to the Company, rvhereupon it is transferred to land stock under inventories/ capital work in progress.

I-and/ developrnent rights received under joint development arrangements ('JDA') is measured at the fair value of thc
estimated construction service rendered to the land owner and the same is accounted on launch ofthe project. The amount of
non-refundable deposit paid by the Company under JDA is recognized as land advance under other assets and on the launch
ofthe project, the non-refundable amount is transferred as land cost to work-in-progress/ capital work in progress. Further., the
amount ofrefundable deposit paid by the company under JDA is recognized as deposits under loans..

rl
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(A Il amounts are in Million Indian rupees, unless otherwise stated)

(l) Revenue recognition
A. Revenue recognition
a, (i) Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue fiom contracts with customers is recognised when control ofthe goods or services are transferred to the customer at

an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects Io be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for discounts and other credits, if
any, as specified in the contract with the customer. The Company presents revenue from contracts with customers net of
indirect taxes in its statement olprofit and loss.

The Company considers whether there are other promises in the contract that are separate performance obligations to which a

portion ofthe transaction pricc needs to be allocated. In determining the transaction price, the Company considers the effects

of variable consideration, the existence of significant financing components, noncash consideration, and consideration
payable to the customer, ifany.

Revenue from real estate development of residential unit is recognised at the point in time, when the control of the asset is

transferred to the customer, which generally coincides with transfer of physical possession of the residential unit to the
customer i.e.., handover/ deemed handover ofthe residential units. Deemed handover ofthe residential units is considereC

upon intimation to the customers about receipt ofoccupancy certificate and receipt ofsubstantial sale consideration.

Revenue consists of sale of undivided share of land and constructed area to the customer, which have been identified by the
Company as a single performance obligation, as they are highly interrelated./ interdependent.

The performance obligation in relation to real estate development is satisfied upon completion of project rvork and transfer of
control ofthe asset to the customer.

For contracts involving sale of real estate unit, the Company receives the consideration in accordance with the terms of the
contract in proportion ofthe percentage of completir.rn ofsuch real estate project and represents payments made by customers

to secure performance obligation ofthe Company under the contract enforceable by customers. Such consideration is received
and utilised for specific real estate projects in accordance with the requirements of the Real Estate (Regulation and

Development) Act, 2016. Consequently, the Company has concluded that such contracts with customers do not involve any
financing element since the same arises for reasons explained above, which is other than for provision of finance to/from the

customer.

Further, for projects executed through joint development arrangements not being jointly controlled operations, wherein the
land orvner/possessor provides land and the Company undertakes to develop properties on such land and in lieu of land owner
providing land, the Company has agreed to transfer certain percentage ofconstructed area or certain percentage ofthe revenue
proceeds, the revenue from the development and transfer of constructed areal revenue sharing arrangement in exchange of
such development rights/ land is being accounted on gross basis on launch of the project. Revenue is recognised over time
using input method, on the basis of the inputs to the satisfaction of a performance obligation relative to the total expected
inputs to the satisfaction ofthat performance obligation.

The revenue is measured at the fair value of the land received, adjusted by the amount of any cash or cash equivalents
transferred. When the fair value oflhe land received cannot be measured reliably, the revenue is rneasured at the Ihir value of
the estimated construction service rendered to the land owner, adjusted by the amount of any cash or cash equivalents
transferred. The fair value so estimated is considered as the cost of Iand in the computation of percentage of completion for
the purpose ofrevenue recognition as discussed above.

Recognition of revenue from sale of land and development rights:
Revenue from sale of land and development rights is recognised upon transfer of all significant risks and rewards of
ownership of suclt real estate/property, as per the terms of the contracts entered into with buyers, which generally coincides
with the firming ofthe sales contracts/agreements. Revenue fiom sale ofland and development rights is only recognised when
transfer of legal title to the buyer is ltot a condition precedent for transfer ofsignificant risks and rewards ofownership to thc
buyer.

Recognition of revenue from interior works and sale of concrete products and scrap:
Revenue is recognised when control ofthe goods are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which lhe Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods. Revenue excludes indirecl taries and is after
deduction ofany trade discounts.



Casa Grande Civil Engineering Private Limited
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(A ll amounts are in Million Indian rupees, unless otherwise staled)

Recognition of revenue from maintenance and other services:

Revenue in respect of maintenance services and other services is recognised on an accrual basis, in accordance with the terms

of the respective contract as and when the Company satisfies perlormance obligations by delivering the services as per

contractual agreed terms.

Income from Property Development:
The Company has determined that the existing terms of the contract with customers does not meet the criteria to recognise

revenue ovet a period of time. Revenue is recogniz-ed at point in time with respect to contracts for sale of residential and

commercial units as and rvhen the control is passed on to the customers which is linked to the application and receipt ol
occupancy certificate.

Sale of Materials, Land and Development Rights:
Revenue is recognized at point in time with respect to contracts for sale of Materials, Land and Development Rights as and

when the control is passed on to the customers.

a. (ii) Contract balances

Contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Company
performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before pal'ment is due, a

contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional.

Trade receivable represents the Company's right to an amount ofconsideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of
time is required before payment ofthe consideration is due).

Contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received
consideration (or an amount ofconsideration is due) from the customer. Ifa customer pays consideration before the Company
transfers goods or services to the customer, a contracl liability is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due
(rvhichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

a. (iii) Cost to obtain a contract
The Company recognises as an asset the incremental costs ofobtaining a contract with a customer ifthe Comfiany expects to
recover those costs. The Company incurs costs such as sales commission when it enters into a new contract, which are

directly related to winning the contract. The asset recognised is amortised on a systematic basis that is consistent with the
transfer to the customer ofthe goods or services to which the asset relates.

b, Lease income
The Company's policy for recognition ofrevenue ilom operating leases is described in note 2.2(h).

c. Share in profiU loss of Limited Liability Partnerships ("LLPs") and partnership firm
The Company's share in profits/losses from LLPs and partnership firm, where the Company is a partner, is recognised as

income/loss in the statement of profit and loss as and when the right to receive is profit/ loss share is established by the
Company in accordance with the terms ofcontract between the Company and the partnership entity.

B. Othcr Income
a. Interest income

Interest income, including income arising liom other financial instruments measured at amortised cost, is recognised using the
effective interest rale method.

b. Dividend income

Revenue is recognised when the Company's right to receive dividend is established, which is generally when shaeholdcr,;
approve the dividenJ.

(m) Foreign currency translation
Funclional and presentation currency :

ltems included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency olthe primary econornic
environment in which the Company operates ('the functional currency'). The financial statenlents are presented in InCian
rupee (NR), which is the Company's functional and presentation currency.
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Foreign currency transactions and balances

A. Initial recognition - Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign
currency amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date ofthe transaction.

B, Conversion - Foreign currency monetary items are retranslated using the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date.

Non-monetary items, which are measured in terms ofhistorical cost denominated in a foreign currency, are reported using the
exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary items, which are measured at fair value or other similar valuation
denominated in a foreign currency, are translated using the exchange rate at the date when such value was determined.

C. Exchange differenccs - The Company accounts for exchange differences arising on translation/ settlement of foreign
currency monetary items as income or as expense in the period in which they arise.

(n) Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefits in the form of state govemed Employee Provident Fund and Employee State Insurance are defined
contribution schemes (collectively the'Schemes'). The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the
Schemes. The Company recognizes contribution payable to the Schemes as expenditure, when an employee renders the
related service. The contribution paid in excess of amount due is recognized as an asset and the contribution due in excess of
amount paid is recognized as a liability.

Gratuity, which is a defined benefit plan, is accrued based on an independent actuarial valuation, which is done based on
project unit credit method as at the balance sheet date. The Company recognizes the net obligation ofa defined benefit plan in
its balance sheet as an asset or liability. Gains and losses through re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability/ (asset)

are recognized in other comprehensive income. In accordance with Ind AS, re-measurement gains and losses on defined
benefit plans recognized in OCI are not to be subsequently reclassified to statement of profit and loss. As required under Ind
AS compliant Schedule III, the Company recognizes re-measurement gains and losses on defined benefit plans (net of tax) to
retained eamings.

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term employee benefit
for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the
projected unit credit method, made at the end of each financial year. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to lhe
statement of profit and loss. The Company presents the accumulated leave liability as a current liability in the balance sheet,
since it does not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for twelve months after the reporting date.

(o) Income taxes

Income tax expense comprises current tax expense and the net change in the defened tax asset or Iiability during the year.

Current and defened tax are recognized in the statement of profit and loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and defened tax are also
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

A. Current income tax
Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorilies. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the
reporting date where the Company operates and generates taxable income.
Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profil or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in
OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax retums rvith respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and considers whether it is probable that a taxation authority rvill
accept an uncertain tax treatment. The company shall reflect the effect ofuncertainty for each uncertain tay treatment by using
either most likely method or expected value method, depending on which method predicts better resolution ofthe treatment.
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 3l March 2023

(A ll amounts are in Million Indian rupees, unless otherwise stated)

(p) Provisions and contingent liabilities

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past event, it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. lf the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are
discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is

used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.
A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occulTence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a
present obligation lhat is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflotv of resources rvill be required to settle the
obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized
because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses it in the financial
statements, unless the possibility ofan outflow ofresources embodying economic benefits is remote.

If the Company has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation under the contract is recognisecl and measured as a
provision. However, before a separate provision for an onerous contract is established, the Company recognises any
impairment loss that has occurred on assets dedicated to that contract.
A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occtllTence ol non-occulrence ofone or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control ofthe entity.

Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed except when realisation of income is virtually certain, related asset is
disclosed.

(q) Financial Instrrrments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entily and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.
Initial recognit ion and m e asurement

Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at fair value, trade receivable/trade payable tlat do not contain a
significant financing component are measured at transaction value and investment in subsidiaries are measured at, costing
accordance wilh Ind AS 27 - separate financial statement. r l

SubSequentmeaSuremenl:Non-derivaliveJinancialinslruments

B. Deferred income tax
Deferred income tax is recognized using the balance sheet approach, deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences at

the balance sheet dale between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes, except when the deferred income tax arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the

transaction.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credits and

unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary

differences, and the carry forward ofunused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be

utilized.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the asset

is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity) in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or in equity.

Minimum Altemate Tax (MAT) credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that
the Company will pay normal tax during the specified period. Such asset is reviewed at each Balance Shect date and the
carrying amount ofthe MAT credit asset is written down to the extent there is no longer a convincing evidence to the effect
that the Company rvill pay normal tax during the specified period. In the same way, Altemate Minimum Tax (AMT) is

recognised for LLP.
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A. Financial assets carried at amorlised cost
A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold
the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms ofthe financial asset give rise on specified dates

to cash flows that are solely payments ofprincipal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

B. Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held rvithin a

business whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contraclual

terms ofthe financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments ofprincipal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

C, Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assels are measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured at amortized cost or at fair value

through other comprehensive income on initial recognition.

D. Debt instruments at amortized cost
A 'debt instrument' is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:
i. The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

ii. Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal.and interest
(SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate
(EIR) method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part ofthe EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losscs arising
from impairment are recognized in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

E. Investment in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates

lnvestment in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are carried at cost. Impairment recognized, ifany, is reduced from thc
carrying value.

F, De.recognition of linancial asset

The Company derecognizes a financial asset rvhen the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire or it
transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for de-recognition under Ind AS 109.

G. Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, or as payables, as appropriate. The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and
bonowings including bank overdrafts. The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification,
which is described below.

Subsequent measureme n I : Non-derivat ive rtnancial instruments

H. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designatcd upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for tradirrg
ifthey are incuned for the purpose ofrepurchasing in the near term.

\
c1

-t
,/

AI



Casa Grande Civil Engineering Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 3l March 2023
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I. Financial liabilities at amortized cost
Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cosl using the effective interest ('EIR') method. Gains and losses

are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part ofthe ElR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

J, De-recognition of financial liability

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an

existing tinancial liability is replaced by another fi'om the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms ofan
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition ofa nerv liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the staternent
of profit or loss.

IC Fair value measurement
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transactiotr bet*'ecn
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transactiol to
sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:
) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
) In the absence ofa principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.
The fair value of an assel or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the
asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in
its highest and bcst use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximising the use ofrelevant observable inputs and minimising the use ofunobservable inputs.

ln determining the fair value of its financial instruments, the Company uses following hierarchy and assumptions that are
based on rnarket conditions and risks existing at each reporting date.

L. Fair value hierarchy:
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statenlents are categorized within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value mcasurement as a

whclc:

Level I - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value rneasurement is directly
or indirectly observable

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is

unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company cietermines whether

transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy b1,re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is

significant to the fair value measurement as a rvhole) at the end ofeach reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the

nature, characteristics and risks ofthe asset or liability and the level ofthe fair value hierarchy as explained above.

(r) 'Cash 
dividend to equity holders of the Company

The Company recognizes a liability to make cash distributions to equity holders of the Company when the distribution is

authorized and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. Final dividends on shares are recorded as a

liability on the date ofapproval by the shareholders and interim dividends are recorded as a liability on the date ofdeclaration

by the Company's Board of Director

!
lnllt i

\
!:--'



Casa Grande Civil Engineering Private Limited
Notes to linancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
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(s) Earnings Per Share

Basic eamings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by

the weighted average number ofequity shares outstanding during the period. Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction

of an equity share to the extenl that they are entitled to participate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during the

reporting period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such as

bonus issue that have changed the number ofequity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted eamings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity

shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all
dilutive potential equity shares.

(t) Cash and cash equivalents
The Company considers all highly liquid financial instnrments, which are readily convertible into known amounts ofcash that

are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value and having original maturities of three months or less from the date of
purchase, to be cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents consist of balances with banks which are unrestricted for
withdrawal and usage.

(u) Restatemcnt
The Company restates its financial statements and presents a opening balance sheet as at the beginning of the preceding

period if it applies an accounting policy retrospectively, makes a retrospective restatement of items in its financial statements

or reclassifies items in its financial statements that has a material effect on the information in the balance sheet at the

beginning of the preceding period.

The Company corrects material prior period errors retrospectively in the first set of financial statements approved for issue

after their discovery by (a) restating the comparative amounts for the prior periods presented in which the error occurred; or
(b) if the error occurred before the earliest prior period presented, restating the opening balances of assets, liabilities and

equity for the earliest prior period presented.

(v) Segment reporting
In accordance with Ind AS 108 - Operating Segnent, the operating segments used to present segment information are

identified on the basis of information reviewed by the Company's management to allocate resources to the segments and

assess their performance. An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from
which it eams revenues and incurs expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the

Company's other components. Results of the operating segments are reviewed regularly by the Managing Director who has

been identified as the chicf operating decision maker (CODM), to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the

segment and assess its performance.

Presently, the Company is engaged in only one segment viz'Real estate and allied activities' and as such there is no scpalate

reportable segment as per Ind AS 108 'Operating Segments'. The Company has operations only within India.

Accordingly, the segment revenue, segment results, total carrying amount of segment assets and segment liability, total cost
incurred to acquire segment assets and total amount of charge for depreciation during the period, is as reflected in the
financial statements as ofand for the year ended 3l March 2023.

2.3 Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions
The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported balances of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these judgments, assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a
material adjustment to the carrying amount ofassets or liabilities affected in future periods.

In the process of applying the Colnpany's accounting policies, management makes judgement, estimates and assumptions

which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements.

The key judgements, estimates and assumptions conceming the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its judgements, assumptions and estimates on
parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptiom about future
developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the
Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur. , i'



Casa Grande Civil Engineering Private Limited
Notes to Iinancial statements for the year ended 3l March 2023
(All amounts are in Million Indian s. unless otherwise stat

A) Revenuc from contracts with customers

The Company applied the following judgements that significantly affect the determination of the amount and timing of
revenue from contracts with customers:

a. (i) Identification of performance obligation

Revenue consists of sale of undivided share of land and constructed area to the customer, which have been identified by the

Company as a single performance obligation, as they are highly intenelated/ interdependent. In assessing whether
performance obligations relating to sale of undivided share of land and constructed arca are highly interrelated/
interdependent, the Company considers factors such as:

- whether the customer could benefit from the undivided share of land or the constructed area on its own or together rvith
other resources readily available to the customer.

- whethel the entity will be able to fulfil its promise under the contract, to transfer the undivided share of land without
transfer ofconstructed area or transfer the constructed ar€a without transfer of undivided share of land.

a. (ii) Timing ofsatisfaction of performance obligation
Revenue from salc of real estate units is recognised when (or as) control of such units is transferred to the customer. The
entity assesses timing of transfer of control of such units to the customers as transferred over time if one of the following
criteria are met:

- The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the entity's pertbnrance as the entity
performs.
- The entity's performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced.

- The entity's performance does not create an asset with an altemative use to the entity and the entity has an enforceable right
to payment for performance completed to date.

Ifcontrol is not transferred over time as above, the entity considers the same as transferred at a point in timc.

For contracts rvhere control is transferred at a point in time the Company considers the following indicators ofthe transfer of
- When the cntity obtains a present right to payment for the asset.

- When the entity transfers legal title ofthe asset to the customer.
- When the entity transfen physical possession ofthe asset to the customer.
- When the entity transfers significant risks and rewards ofownership ofthe asset to the customer.
- When the customer has accepted the asset.

The aforesaid indicators of transfer of control are also considered for determination of the timing of derecognition of
investment property.

b) Accounting for revenue and land cost for projects executed through joint development arrangements ((JDA')
For projects executed through joint development arrangemcnts, the Company has evaluated that land owners are not engaged

in the same line of business as the Company and hence has concluded that such arrangements are contracts with customers.

The revenue liom the development and transfer of constructed area,/revenue sharing arrangement and the corresponding land/

development rights received under JDA is measured at the fair value ofthe estimated construction service rendered to the land

owner and the sarne is accounted on launch ofthe project. The fair value is estimated with reference to the terms ofthe JDA
(whether revenue share or area share) and the related cost that is allocated to discharge the obligation of the Cornpany under

the JDA. Fair value ofthe construction is considered to be the representative fair value ofthe revenue transaction and land so

obtained. Such assessment is canied out at the launch of the real estate project and is not reassessed at each reporting period.

The management is ofthe view that the fair value method and estimates are reflective ofthe culrent market condition.

c) Significant financing component

For contracts involving salc of real estate unit, the Company receives the consideration in accordance with the terms of the

contract in proportion ofthe percentage of completion ofsuch real estate project and represents payments made by customers

to secure performance obligation ofthe Company urrder the contract enforceable by customers. Such consideration is received

and utilised for specific real estate projects in accordance with the requirements of the Real Estate (Regulation and

Development) Act,2016. Consequently, the Cornpany has concluded that such contracts with customers do not involve any

financing element since thc same arisei for reasons explained above, rvhich is other thalt for provision of finance to/from the

customer.

>_,4
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Casa Grande Civil Engineering Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 3l March 2023
(All amounts are in Million Indian rupees, unless otheruise stated)

F. Useful life and residual value of property, plant and equipment
The useful life and residual value of property, plant and equipment is determined based on evaluation made by the

management of the expected usage of the asset, the physical wear and tear and technical or commercial obsolescence of the
asset. Due to the judgements involved in such estimates the useful life and residual value are sensitive to the actual usage in
future period.

G. Provision for litigations and contingencies
Provision for litigations and contingencies is determined based on evaluation made by the management of the present

obligation arising fiom past events the seftlement of which is expected to result in outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits, which involves judgements around estilnates the ultimate outcome of such past events and measurement of the
obligation amount. Due to judgements involved in such estimation the provision is sensitive to the actual outcome in future
periods.

2.4 Recent accounting pronouncements

New and amended standards
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies
(lndian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On March 3l 2023, MCA amended the Companies (lndian
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, as below:

Ind AS l, Presentation of Financial Statements - This amendment requires the entities to disclose their material accounting
policies rathel than their significant accounting policies. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods
beginning on or after 0l April 2023.

Ind AS 8, Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Enors - This amendment has introduced a definition of
'accounting estimates'and included amendments to Ind AS 8 to help entities distinguish changes in accounting policies from
changes in accounting estimates. The effective date for adoption ofthis amendment is annual periods beginning on or after 0l
April2023.

Ind AS 12, Income Taxes - This amendment has narrowed the scope ofthe initial recognition exemption so that it does not
apply to transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting temporary differences. The effective date for adoption of this
amendment is annual periods beginning on or after 0l April 2023.

The amendments are extensive and the Company will evaluate the same to give effect to them as required by law.

These amendments had no impact on the financial statements ofthe Company.

4- ,\
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Casa Grande Civil f,ngineering Priyate Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 3l March 2023

(All amounts are in Millions, unless otherwise staled)

3. Property, plant and equipment
Furniture

BuildingsComputers and
Fixtures

Office
Equipment

Plant and
Machinery

Vehicles Total

Cost

0.33

0.53

3.34 0.97 48.7,1

32.94

53.38

49.5916.t2
As at 01 April 2021

Additions during thc year

Disposals during the year

As at 3l March 2022

Additions during the year

Disposals during the year

As at 31 March 2023

0.86 3.34

1.03 3.06 11.76

16.12 102.97

18.77

0.97

2.00

81.68

c.92

r.03 3.92 15.10

0.t8 0.87

2.97

0.38

82.60

21.45

16.12 121.74

2.99 25.87

Depreciation
As at 01 April 2021

Depreciation charge for
the year

Disposals during the year

As et 3l March 2022

Depreciation charge for
the year

Disposals during the year

0.18 0.87

l.l5 2.t3 0.58 14.27

2.99 25.87

0.02 3.40 2t.55

As at 31 March 2023

Net block

As at 01 April 2021

As at 31 March 2022

As at 3l March 2023 1.01

1.33 3.00 0.96 35.72 6.39 47.42

0.33

0.68

2,59

3.3,1

2.41

12.10

0.97

0.59

2.01

13.13

9,73

53.38

77.10

74.32

48.74

60.23

46.88

Note - On transition to Ind AS (i.e. I April 2021),the Company has elected to contiuue rvith the carrying value of all
property, plant and equipment measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of
property, plant and cquipment.

0.38 21.45

0.02

ffi



Casa Grande Civil Engineering Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts are in Millions, unless otherwise staled)

4. Investmcnt properties

Land Buildings Total
As at 0l April 2021

Additions during the year

Disposals during the year

As at 3l March 2022

Additions during the year

Disposals during the year

As at 31 March 2023

As at 0l April 2021

As at 3l March 2022

As at 3l March 2023

51.41 51.41

51.41 51.41

51.41 51.41

51.{r
51.41

51.41

51.41

51.41

51.4r

Note - On transition to Ind AS (i.e. I April 2021), fhe Company has elected to continue with rhe carrying value of all
Investment properties measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of lnvestment
properties.

Information regarding income and expenditurc of Invcstment properties As at As at
31 March 2023 31Mtrch2022

Rental income derived from investment properties

Direct operating expenses (inctuding repairs and rnaintenance) arising from
investment properties that gencraling rental income

Direct operating expenses (including repairs and maintenance) arising from
investnlent properties that did not generate rental income

Prolit arising from investment properties before depreciation and indirect
Less - Depreciation

Profit arising from investment properties before indirect expenses

The Companv's investment properties consist of f,and.

Fair values of investment properties comprises of {: 87.50 Mn as on 3l March 2023, (31 March 2022 : 87.50 Mn and 0l
Api,l202l: 87.50 Mn). These valuations are based on Guideline valuations as per State Government.

The Company has no restrictions on the realisability of its investment properties and no contraclual obligations to
purchase, construct or develop inveshnent properties or for repairs, maintenance and enhancements.

(: CHTNNA

x._-\39

Depreciation and impairment
As at 01 April 2021

Depreciation charge for the year

As at 3l ll{arch 2022

Depreciation charge for the year

As at 3l March 2023

Net block

iij\
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5.Right-of-use assets

ross

As at 01 April 2021

Additions during the year

Other adjustments (lease modification)
Disposals during the year

As at 31 March 2022

Additions during the year

Other adjustments (lease modification)
Disposals during the year

As at 31 March 2023

Accumulated amorlisation

As at 0l April 2021

Additions during the year

Disposals during the year

As at 3l March 2022

Additions during the year

Disposals during the year

As at 3l March 2023

Net block

As at 01 April 2021

As at 31 March 2022

As at 3l March 2023

8.90 8.90

8.90

8.90 8.90

8.90

0.89 0.89

0.89 0.89

0.89 0.89

1.78 1.78

8.90

8.01

7.12

8.90

8.01

7.12

il)
j\.1N A

Casa Grande Civil Engineering Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts are in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

Buildinss Total



Ces. Grrnde Civil Enginecring Privete Limited
Notes to Fitrancial Statements for the ve.r cnded 3l March 2023
(All atuounts are in Millio$, ut ess othertl'ise $lated)

6, InvestmeDts
As .t

3l March 2023

As .t
3l Merch 2022

As .t
0l April202l

ItrvGstmaDts

i. IDvcstmctrts rt cost

L UDquoted cquity sharcs (fully paid)
a) Casagrand Anchor Private Limited
(March3l,2023:10,000, March 3l,2022 : 10,000, April01,202I: Nil)
equity shares ofRs. l0/- each.

0.10 0.10

0.l0 0.10

Totrl investmeDts ra cost

Currcnt
Non-Currcot

0.l0

0.r0 0.10

ii. Investmetrts rt frir value through Profit and Loss

Quoted Mutual Funds As rl
3l Merch 2023

As rt
3l Mrrch 2022

As rt
0l April202l

Mutual Fund

SBI Fixed Maturity Plan (FI,lP)-Series 82 (9lDays) Regular Growth
(Units - 499,975.00, NAV - 10.00/unit)

Total Investments rt fsir vsluc through Profit ard Loss

5.00

s.00

5.10 0.t 0Totrl Iltvestments

Current

Non-Current
5.00

0.10

5.00

5.00

0.10

Aggrcgrtc book vrluc ofquotcd investments
Aggrcgstc mrrkct vrlue ofquotcd ilvcstments
Aggrcgslc vrluc of unquotcd inveslmcnts

7. Loens
(Unsecured considered good unless othen'ise stated,

measured at amortised cost)
As at

3l March 2023

As .t
3l Mrrch 2022

As st

0l April 2021

0. r0

0.10

Losns to rclated prrty
I-oan to related parties

Totrl loeos carricd rt rmortiscd cost

Current

Non-Current

E. Other financirl assets

(Measured at anortised cost)

2,3',t 4.09 1,318.78 2 88.85

2,374.09 t,3t8.78 288.85

2,314.09 1,318.78 2 88.8-5

As et
Jl Merch 2023

As at
3l March 2022

As at
0l April202l

Seourity deposit

Bank deposits with more than l2 months

Interest accrucd but not due

Unbilled Revenue

lnterest accrued and due

Rental advance

Totel finrncial instrumcnts rt rmortiscd cost

Current

Not-Ctlrr.:ilt

0.38

85.18

235.7 5

0.02

0.34

3.83

225.29

150.26

0.20

1.39

t9.49 22.0t
31.92

52.56

325.50 396.63 107.99

23e.94

85.56

3'77.14

t9.49
54.06

53.93

0.t0

0.1:l

1.37

-/- - i:\rai\
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Casr Grande Civil Engincering Privatc Limited
Not.s to Finrnci.l Strtements for the year ended 3l March 2023
(All amounts arc in Millions. unless otherwise stale

As at
f,l March 202J

As at
.ll March 2022

As rt
0l April202l

Advance lo suppliers
Advances for land contiacts
Tax paid under protcst

Advance to employees

Prepaid cxpenses

Tot.l othcr asscts

Cureot
Non Current

10. Dcfcrred tax rssets (tret)/ Deferred tax liabilities (net)

r0J.03 ,t0.28 67.04

65.',t9

10.38

25.96

0.22

0.68

23.20

1.00

16.06

0.02

50.68

0.10

16.06

0.20

77.07

25.96

24.22

16.06

As rt
3l M ch 2023

As rt
Jl March 2022

As rt
0l April 2021

Deferred tex liebilities
Property, plant and equipmcnt

Inventory

Borrorvings

ROU-Asset

Gross deferred tax liabilities

Dcferrcd trx sssets

Property, plant and equipment

Unearned revenuc

JDA Liability
Lease Liability
Security deposit

Non deductible expenses for tax purposes

Gross dcfcrrcd trx rssets

Net defcrred tax asset/(liabilities)

I I. Inventories

232.12

4.74

t.79

259.36

2.85

2.02

2.38.65 26.1.2J

12.01

314. t 8

0.32

2.05

0.13

0.61

899.',11

3.70

2.10

0.14

0.44

t2.28
332.58

1.99

0.13

13.56

360.5{ 906.09

As at
3l Msrch 2023

As at
3l March 2022

As rt
0l April202l

Work-in-progess
Raw materials, components and stores

Totrl ilvcntorics rl thc lowcr ofcost and nct rerlisrblc vrluc

12. Trade receivrbles
(Unsecured, considered good)

3,482.55

144.26

2,408.54

62.65

3,484.43

120.80

3.626.8t 2,47t.19 3,605.23

As at
ll March 2023

As rt
3l March 2022

As st
0l April202l

Trade reccivables

Reccivablcs from other related parties

Trade reccivables ageing schedule

271.08

83.45

143.07

630.06

r80.44

|,492.47
354.53 773.13 t,672.9l

As.t As st As rt
3l Mrrch 2023 Jl March 2022 0l April202l

Utrdisput.d Tradc Receivrbles - considered good

Outstanding for following periods from due date ofpaynlent

Cunent but not duc

Less than 6 months

6months-lysar
I -2 years

2-3 years

More than 3 years

Total

305.40

17.84

t6.3'1

5.25

9.67

2'71.77

53.51

']'18.7 5

568.88

{=

Itl <t 77 I 12.91

9. Other assets

50.98

t6.06

2.21

7 t'7.95

0.82

2.24

.129.30

121.89 65.07 182.87

ogo.ss

39.36

18.38

l3.l 7

3.67



13. Cash and cash equivalents As rt
3l March 2023

As st
3l Merch 2022

As rt
0l ADril202l

Batances with banks:

- On current accounts

- Deposits with original maturity ofless than three months

Cash on hand

Totsl cssh rod cssh equiYalent

103.3 t
t.l4
0.65

29.7 6

o_31

48.00
9.16

1.63

58.79t05.10 30.r3

14, Bank balances other than cash rnd c.sh cquivalents As.t
3l March 2023

As rt
3l Mcrch 2022

As .t
0l April202l

ln deposits accounts:
- Original maturities more than three months and less than 12 months

In ear marked dccounls:

- Balance held as margin money against guarantees given
Totrl othcr bank balancc

1he Company has pledged a parl ofits short-term deposits to fulfil collateral requirements

15. Curre[t txx asset (net)

2.60

38.28 20.5,1

-18-28 20.54 1.ri0

As rt
f,l Merch 2023

As rt
3l Mrrch 2022

As at
0l April202l

Advance tax

Provision for tax

Totrl curretrt t.x (nct)

16. Equity share capital

I07.87
( r 13.21)

723.43

(76r.08)
70t.03

(69t.42)

Equity sharcs of{ l0 each

Number Amoxnt

t0,000 0.10

10,000 0.10

Rights, pr.fcr.nccs rrld rcsirictiors rttschcd to thc

The Company has onc class ofequity sharcs viz., regular equity shares,

Regular Equity shares : These equity shares are having a par value of{ l0 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for One yote p€r

share held. The dividend proposed by the board is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the cnsuing Annual Gcneral

Meeting, except in case of interim dividend. In the event ofliquidation, the cquity sharcholden are eligible to receive the remaining

assets ofthe Company after distribution ofall preferential amount, in proportion to their sharcholding.

a) Authorised shrrc capilrl
As et 0l April202l
Increase(decrease) during the year

As et 3l March 2022

Increase/(deuease) du ng the year

As at 3t March 2023

b) Issued share capital

At 0l April 2021

lncreasc,'(dccrease) during thc ycar

At 3l March 2022

Increase/(decreasc) durirg the vear

At 3l March 202J

c) Paid-up shrre cipital
At 0l April 2021

Increase/(dccrease) during the year

At 3l M.rch 2022

lncrcase/(decrease) during the year

At 3l Mrrch 202.3

10,000 0. t0

10,000 0.10

10,000 0.10

__rqqqq___qJ!_

10,000 0.t0

t0.000 0.l0+

10.000 0.10

Crss Grrode Civil Ergitrcering Privatc l,imited
Notcs to Fioetrcirl Strtemcnts for th. y.rr cnded 3l Mrrch 2023
(Allamounts are in Millions, unless otherwise staled)

Cash at banks eams interest at floating ratcs based on daill bnnk dcposit ratcs. Shcrt-term deposits are made for varying periods of
b€tween one day and three months, depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Company, and eam interest at thc
respective short-term deposit rates,

___$4I______ll2.65L__-2.! t



Casa Grande Civil Engineering Private Limited
Notes to Finrncirl Stetements for the veer ended 3l Merch 2023
(All amounts are in Milliotts, unless otherwise

Dctrils ofsher.holdcrs holding morc than 5yo shsres rnd shrrcs bcld by promotors itr the Comprny
As rt As rt

3l March 2023 3l Merch 2022
No. of Sheres 7" of Holdinc No- of Sheres oZ of Holdinr

Equity shrrcs
Casagrand Premier Builder Private Limited (Formerly

known as Casagrand Builder Private Limited)
10,000 tooo lo0yo10,000

As rt
0l April202l

Equity shrres
Casagand Premier Builder Private Limited (Formerly
kno$"n as Casagrand Builder Private Limited)

17. Othcr equity

10,000 100%

As at
3l Msrch 2023

As at
3l March 2022

As at
0l April 2021

e) Rctri[ed G.rnilgs
Opcning
Add:Additions
Less: Utilised/ transfened

Closing

18. Borrowinqs

t,229.94

t2.2t
655.53

5',74.41

525.25

130.28

I,2,t2.15 1.229.91 655.53

As rt
3l March 2023

As at
3l Merch 2022

As at
0l April202l

l2% Secured Unlisted Non - Convcrtible Debentues Series

I each having a facc value of INR 1,00,000 each

(3 I March 2023 - Nil, 3l March 2022 - 7 548, 0 I April 202 t - Nil)

ii) Term Loans

a) From Bank
l) Sccurcd

b) From other prrties

l) Sccured

From Financial institutions

B) Currcnt borrorvings

i) Short-term borrowi[gs
Bark loan

ii) Lo.n repayeble on demrnd
Irom related parties

Cash credit/ Bank ove.draft

iii) Currcnt maturity oflorg-term loans

From Financial institutions

Vehicle loans

Totsl current Borrowings

270.00

t,t 17.02

17.7 5

7 45.28

IIt.0t

20.59

12.19 1t.77

t,868.59 889.67 21.77

4',7.6'l

362.99

100.00

13.86

95'.1.82

6.50

4.20

31.60

254.64

342.66

30.00

\-

, 524.52 I t2 597.30

A) Notr{urreot borrowiDgs

i) DebcDtures

I 0% Unlisted unrated secured redeemable, non-convertible

debeDturcs at par value of INR 1,00,000

(31 March 2023 - 2700, 3l March 2022 - Nil, 0l April 2021 - Nil)

iii) Vchicle lorns
From Financial institutions

Total non current borrowilgs

463.82

4(t \
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Cesx Grrnd. Civil f,ogine.ring Privrte Limitcd
Notes to Finrnciel Strt.mcltts for the yelr.ndad 3l Mrrch 2023
(All amou s aft in

S.no l,rnder Prrticulars 2023 2022 2021

r50.00

Borrowing Entiry: Ca5a Crande Civil EnEincering Private Limited
Nature ofSecurity :

l. Property: (i) Exclusive charBe on equilable Mort8age of residential flat located in C8sagmnd
ECRI4 at Signature Tower, Flat No.Al20l, Twelth Floor, Maya Street Kanathur Reddy Kuppam,
ECR. Chennai-601f 12. Apsnment is in lhe Land located in Survey No-36/2 parl,3613,3'lll,37/2,
3715 Put,31/6 pan)snA part,lsl2B pan. 48,2 part, 48/3 Pan,48/4 &48/5 Part, UDS - 1615 sq.ft
and Super Built up Area - 5093 sq.ft. owned by Mrs Dorolhy Thomas
(ii) Exclusive charge on Equitable Mortgage of residential flat localed in Casagrand Olympus
siruakd al Door No.ll, FIat No.l8B. Eighteenth Floor, South Canal Bank Road, Mylapore,
Chcnnai 600028 Apanment is in the Land located in OId RS.N0.43l I pan, New RS.No-41I l/208,
UDS - 556 sq.ft & Super Buill up tuea - 2016 sq.fl.. owned by Mr. Arun MN
(iii) Exclusi!e charge on Equilable mongage ofresidential prop€rty located at Old Door No.3/669,
New No.l/6678, Kavery Nagar, bay Watch Boulevard Road, Kottivakkam, Chennai 600041.
Apaflment is in the Land located in Old R.S.No.43l I part, New RS.NO.43I l/208, UDS - 1203

sq.fl and Super Built up Arca - 2340 sq.ft; o\rned by Mrs.Dorolhy Thomas
(iv) E,(clusive charge on Equitable Mongage ofresidential flat in CASA GRANDE - The address

at flat No.Elo2, First Floor, Easwaran Stre-et, Apanment Block No.E, Karapa.kkan , Chennai
600097, o\rned by Mr. Arun MN Total exlent ofland - 6000 Sq. Ft.

(v) Exclusive charge on equitable morlgage oflhe residential flat located at Monte Carlo Door No.
65 and Door No. 3211, Unit No. 1406, | 2th and l3th floor, Comprised in T.S. No. 3ll1,32l1,35/1,
built-up area 3345 Sq. fl., private Terrac€ 172 Sq. ft., logerhs with an UDS of I I lE Sq. fi, Mount
Road, Adyar Village- UDS - I I 18 sq.ft & Sup€r Built up Area - J345 sq.n, Owned by Casagsnd
Premier Builder Limited.
2. Stock and receivables: First pdi-passu charge on cntire cufient assets of the company ( Casa

Gnnde Civil Engine.ering Private. Limited.) banl under MBA.
3. Personal Guarantee: Mr. Alun MN and Mrs. Dorothy Thomas

4. Corpomte Cuaranlee: Casagrand Prcmier tsuilder Private Limited

I12.20 l4l.0l

Repayment Terms & Rate of Interest :

l. Facility Type: working Capital Term Loan

Total Facility amount: { 150.00 Million
2. Tenor 60 months

3. Repa),nent: Principal .epayable in 60 monthly instalmenls of{ 2.50 Million each

4. Rale ofinte.€st: monthly at the rate of9.20% p.a (floaling).

5. lnte.est R€set: linked to MCLR, MCLR + 0.50%

\ \-j
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Cssr crrnde Civil f,nginc.rillg Privrtc Limited
N_otes to Finrtlciel Strtlmen$ for thc ycrr cnded 3l lUrrch 2023

(All amounts ore it Millions, unless other*ise slaled)

S.no Lender Prrticulars 2022 21121

100.00

Bonowirg Entity: Casa Grande Civil Enginecring Private Limited
Nature of Security :

l. Prop€rry: (i) Exclusive charge on equitable Mortgag€ of residential flat located in Casagrand
ECR14 al Signarure Tower, Flal No.Al20l, Tw€lth Floor, Maya Slreel Kanathur Reddy Kupparn,

ECR. Chennai-6031 l2 Apanment is in the Land located in Survey No.36l2 put,3613,3711,3712,
3715 Pu1,3716 pafi.35/2A part.35/28 parl 48/2 part, 48/3 Part,4E/4 &4t/5 Part, UDS - 1635 sq.ft
and Super Buill uD tuea - 5091 sq fl, owned by Mrs. Dorody Thomas

{ii) Exclusivc charge on Equitablc Montage of residenlial flat localcd in CasagraDd Olympus
siluarcd al Door No.ll. FIar No.l8B. Eighteenth Floor, South Canal Bank Road, Mylapore,
Chennai 600028. Apaament is in lhe lrnd located in OId RS.N0.4l I I part, New RS.No-4311208,
UDS - 556 sq.R & Super Burll up Area - 2016 sq.ft.. owncd by Mr. Arun MN
(iii) Exclusive charge on Equitable mortgage ofresidential properly located at Old Door No.3/669.
New No.3/667B, K.very Nag6r, bay Watch Boul€vard Road, Kottivakka.rn, Chennai 600041.
Aparlment is in th€ tand localed in Old R.S.No.43ll patt, New RS.N0.43lll208, UDS - 1203

sq.ft and Super Built up Arca - 2140 sq.ft; owned by Mrs.Dorothy Thomas
(iv) Exclusive chrrge on Equitable Mortgage of residential flat in CASA GRANDE - The address

at Fli No.EIo2, First Floor, Easwaran Steet, Apartment Block No.E, Karapakkam , Chennai
600097, owned by Mr. Arun MN Tolai €xtent ofland - 6000 Sq. Ft.
(v) Exclusive charge on equitable mortgage oflh€ rcsidential flat located at Monte Carlo Door No.
65 and Door No. 3211, Unit No. 1406, l2th and l3th floor, Compris.d in T.S. No. 3Ul,l2ll.35/1.
built-up arca 3345 Sq. R., private Tenace 172 Sq. ft., together with an UDS of 1l l8 Sq. ff. Mount
Road, Adya, Village. UDS - I I 18 sq.ft & Sup€r Built up Area - 3345 sq.R, Owned by Casagand
Premier Builder Limited.
2. Stock and receivablesr First pad-passu charge on entire curent assets of the company ( Caso

Crande Civil Engineering Private. Limited.) bank under NIBA.
3. Peronal Cuarantee: Mr. Ann MN and M$. Dorothy Thomas

4. Corpomte Guanmtee: Casagand Premier Builder Private Limited

Repa),rnent Terms & Rate of lnlerest :

I. Facility Type: Working Capitsl Term t an

Total Facility amount: I 100.00 Million
2. Tenor: 60 months

3. Repaym€nt: P ncipalrepayable in 60 monthly instalmenls of< 2.50 Million each

4. Rate ofinlerest: monthly at the rale of8.25% p.a (floating).

5. Intercst Rcset: Iinked to MCLR, NICLR + 0.50%

2

/
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Casr Grrnde Civil EnSineering Privrte Limited
Notes to Fimncisl Stetements for the yerr ended 3l Mrrch 2023
(All omounts arc in Millions, unlesi otheruise sloled)

S.no Lender

Disbursc
mcnt

Amt in
Mn

Prrticul{rs 2023 2022 202t

l ICICI Bank

Limited
400.00

Bonovring Dntity: Casa Grande Civil Engineering Private Limited
Nature ofSecurity :

L Property: (i) Exclusive Mortgag€ Charge by the way of equitablc mortgage on the Drop€rty
located at Mannivakkam, Tambarsm, Chennai admessuring approximalely 16,349.31 sq. mtrs.
including all the sfuctures thereon both present & future along wilh lhe development potential

arising thereon both present & future. and on the residential project icasagrand Aria' consisting of
three to\rers each ofc +19 having saleable area ofapprox. 749,109 sq. ft. b€ing developed by Casa

Grande Civil Engineerin8 Private Limited. on lhe above property.
(ii) Exclusive Mortgage Charge by the way ofequitable mongage on th€ other residential project
'Casagrand Arena EWS" consisting of one towq having saleable area of approx. 41,640 sq. ft.
developed by the Casagrand Vallam l,LP.
2. Slock, Receivables & \{ovablc prop€nics:
(i) E:(clusive Charge by the way ofh,,pothecation over all future scheduled rec€ivables (including
withol limitation booking arnounts, l€ase rentals, licensee fees, cashflows, revenues, all insumnce
proc{eds etc. horvsoever adsing from, oul of, both present and fulure, in connection {ith or relating
to the said Projecl - Aria
(ii) Exclusive Cha€e lry the way ofhwothecation over all irture scheduled receivables including
without limitalion booking amounts,lease rentals, licensee fees, cashflows, rev€nues, all insurance
proc€eds etc. ho\rsoever arising from, oul of, both pres€nt arld future, in connection wilh or relating
to thc said ProJcct - Arena
(iii) Exclusive charBe by way of hlpoth€cation on lhe Escrow Accounts of the Project Aria and
fuena and the DSR Account all monies credited/ deposited therein, and all investrnents in resp€ct
thereof
3. Corporale Cuaranlee: Casagrand Prcmier Builder Private Limited, Casagnnd Luxor Private
Limrred and Casagrand Vallam LLP

3t6.91

R€paym€nt Terms & Rate oflnterest :

LFacility Typ.r Rupee Term t an I 800.00 Milli.)n
overdraft faciliry < 100.00 Million (sublirnit ofRTL)
2. Term ofRepayment: 55 monlhs

3. Rate oflntercst: 10.907o p.a

4. Interest t,T,e: floating rate (lCICl MCLR-I Y+ Spread(1.40%))

5. Interest Reset: At the end ofev€ry I year from the date ofdisbursement
6. Repayment Schedule: repayable in 30 monthly inslalments of { 30 Million commcncing from
rhe 25th monlhs ftom the date offiNt disbursement

Aq[rJ
\\iroz



Crsr Grande Civil Engineering Privrte Limited
Notes to Finrncirl Strtements for th. ycrr.ndcd 3l Mrrch 2023

(All an oarrrt arc in Miuions, unkss olhcn'ise stolcO

S.no Lendcr

Disbursc
ment

Amt in
Mn

Perliculars 2023 2022 2021

4

JM
Financial

Credit
Solutions
Limiled

?54.80

Borowing Entity: Casa Grande Civil Engin€ering Privale Limited
Nature of Security :

l. Propcrty: First and Exclusive charg€ by way of a registered mortgage over the land measuring
approximately 21.36 acr€s in Manniva.kkam with structures thereon Mannivakkam (Project

Utopia), in favour ofthe Debenturc Truster for the benefit ofthe Subscrib€r as deb€ntur€ holdet
2. Slock & Receivables & Moveable Assels: H)?othecation and escrow of rcceivables from the
sales ofsold/unsold units ofthe project to be developed on the Mannivakkam land, in favour ofthe
Debenture Truslee for lhe benefit ofthe Subscrib€r as debenturc holder
3. Corporate Guaraotee: Casagrsnd Premier Builder Privale Limited

745.28

I. Facility Tne: Secured Unlisted Non - Convertible Deb€ntures { 860 Million Series 1754E
NCDS each having a face value of0.l0 Million
2. Tenor: 60 months from the dat€ olfirst subscription ofNCD S€ries I
3. Redemplion & Principal Moralo,ium: The Facility shall be repaid in 30 monthly instalm€nts
starting from th€ end ofthe 3lst month from the date offirst subscription ofNCD Seriss I and
ending on the 60th month from the date of first subscription of NCD Series I. There shall be a
principal morstorium of30 months.
4. Redemption premium: The Facility shall be repaid with a redemption premium that r€sults in an

overall IRR of 18.00%, including lhe upfionl fe€, all interim coupon paymenls and p ncipal
repayments.

5. Interim Coupon Rate & lnt€rest Moratorium: 12.00% p.a. Interim lnterest Coupons shall be paid
at the end of each month, provided lhat the Issuer m6y avail an interest moratorium ofup to 12

months, i.e. paymenls of interim inter€st coupons shall commence not later than the end of the
l3lh month &om the date offirst subsc.iption to the NCD Series I.
Loan foreclosed on I lth August 2022

)

JM
Financial

Crcdit
Solulions

Limiled

270.00

Bonowing Entity: Casa Grande Civil Engineering Private Limited
Nature ofSecurity :

l. Property: Firsl and exclusive charge by way of a registercd equitable mortgage over lhe land

admeasuring approximately 5.16 acres in Kovilanchery along with the project being develop€d
over lhe said land with structures thereon ("Projcct Kovilanchery')
2. Slock, rccrivables & movabl€ properties: HlTothecalion ard escrow of rcceivables fiom the
sales ofsoldunsold units of the Project Kovilanchery
J. Corporate Guarantee: Casagrand Prcmier Builder Privale Limited.

270.00

Repaymenl 'ltrms & Rate of Interest :

l. Facility Tne: 2,700 unlisted unoled secured rcdeemable. non-convertible dcbentures at par

value of{ 0.I Million
Total Facility amount: < 270.00 Million
2. Tenor: 60 months from the date ofallotment
J. Rcdemption: Redeemable in 24 instalmenls Fom the €nd of 37th rnonth from the date of
subscription offirst tranche and €nding on lh. 60th monlh.

4. Principal moratorium: 36 months from the date ofsubscription offirst tmnche

5. lnlerim Coupon rate: l0olo p.a (fixed) payable monthly.

6. Interest Momtorium: 9 months. paymenl commenced not later than th€ end of loth month from

the date ofsubscription offiNt tranche

7. Redemption premium: Redeemable with a redemption ptemium thal resulls in 17.7570 overall

IRR

ffi\
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Crsr Grande Civil Engioeering Privrte Limited
Notes lo Finencirl Strtements for lhc y..r cndcd 3l ltlrrch 2023

ll amounts aE in Millions, unless olherwise stoled)

S.no [,ender Prrliculars 2023 2022 2021

Kotak
Mahindra

Investments

Limited

250.00

Bono\ying Entity: Casa Orande Civil Enginecring Private Limit€d
Nature ofSecurity ;

L P.operty: (i) Extension of firsl and €rclusivc charge by the lray of registered mortgage on land
.dmeasuring 21.38 acres (approx.) along \ ith the structures/buildings construct€d / to b€
constructed, called projcct "Platinum" on the said land parcel, including all the €xisting & future
FSl, ben€fits, rights, entitlements snd the receivables arising thereon developed thereon in two
phases with Phase I approved and having saleable area of4,63,31 sq. ft. Phase 2 approved and

haviog saleable area of 13,85,123 sq. ft. localed at M.nnivakkam, Chennai - 600048, Tamil Nadu.
owned by Casa Grande civil Engineering Privste Limited.
(ii) Exlension of first and exclusive charge by the way ofretistered mortgage on land admeasuring
2.68 acres (approx.) excluding UDS for area sold along with the struclures/buildings constructed /
to be constructed, called project "Amberley" on the said land parcel, including all the existing &
future FSI, benefits, rights, entitlem€nts and the receivables arising thereon developed thereon
having saleabl€ area of 85,934 sq. ft. located at Thazambur, Chennai - 600130, Tamil Nadu. olrned
by Casa Crande Smart Value Homes Privale Limited.
(iii) Extension offirsl and exclusive charge by lhe way ofregistered mortgage on larld admeasuring
6.29 acres (approx.) excluding UDS for area sotd along with the structures/buildings construcled /
to b€ consl$cted, called projecl'Divinity" on the said land parcel, including all the exisrin8 &
future FSI, benefils, rights, entitlements and lhe receivabl€s arising thereon developed lhereon
having saleable area of 2.49,940 sff. located at Navalur, Chennai - 600130, Tamil Nadu. oqned by
Oraca Galed Community LLP and Casa Grande Smalt Value Homes Private Limiled.

2 r0.69

2. Stoclq R€c€ivables & Movable properties:
(i) Extension of First and Exclusive Charge by the way of hpothecation and escrow over all
recrivables alising from sale,4easf/Uansfer of land/structure/units int he project "Casagand
Royale' and the land admeasuring 23,892 sq. mt. approx. located al Sholinganallur, Chennai-
600608 Tarnil Nadu o*ned by Cas, Crande Homes Privatc Limiled.
(ii) Extension of First and Exclusive Charge by the way of hr?othecation and €scrow over all
reccivables aising from sale^ease/transfer ofland/structurc,/units int he project 'Casa ECR l4' and
the land admeasuring 7.13 acres approx. located at East Coast Road, Chennai- 6031l2 T6mil Nadu
owned by Casa Grand€ Homes Private Limited.
(iii) HlTothecation & Escrow of receivables ftom sal€/lease/transfer of lanrl,/structurc,/unis of]
Project "Platinum', 'Amberley", 'Divinity", "Royale'& "ECR 14"

3. Corporate Cuaranteer CasagranJ Prcmier Builder Private Limited, Casa Crande Grace Private

Limilcd, Casa Grandc Homcs Pivate Limitod, Casa Crande Sman value Homes Private Limited,

Casa Grande Enteryrisc LLP and GracE Gated community LLP

Repayment Terms & Rate oflnterest :

l.Facility Tlpc: Rupee Term l-oan { 1,000.00 Million
2. Term of Repaymentr 36 months from lhe date of First Disbursement including l8 months

momtoium
l. Rate oflnterest: 1l-25% p.a

4. Interest 9?e: fixed
5. Repayment Schedule: repayable in l8 monthly instalments comm€ncing from l9lh month from
th€ date of firsl disburscment

Disburse
ment

Amt in
Nln
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Ces, Grrndc Civil Engin.cring Privatc Limited
Notes to finrtrcisl Slrtemcnls for th. ycrr.nd.d Jl Mrrch 2023

(All omoants are in Millions, u ess olhefi)ise tloted)

S.no l-ender

Disburs.
ment

Amt in
Ntn

Prrticulars 2023 2022 2[21

1

Kolak
Ivlahindra

Investmenls
Limit€d

100.00

Bonowins Entity: Caia Crande Civil Engineering Private Limited
Natuae of Security : No security

r00.00l. Term ofloan: a 100.00 million -Tenor: 90 days

2. Repalment ofloan principal: end oftenor
3. lnteresl Rat€ 1296 p.a (fixed)

8

lBorrowinB Enlit,: Casa Crande Civil EngrneerinB Private Limited
lNahrre ofsccxriN

ll. Propeo: (i) First & €xclusive charge hy \'/ay ofregistered mon8age on land admeasuring 21.38

lacres 
(excluding area gined to authorities) 8long with the structures/tuildings constructed/to be

lconstrucl€d. called project "Plalinum", on the said land parcel, including all the existing and future

IFSI 
polenlial loaded/lo bc loaded onto le slructures conslructed/to be constructed thereon, to b€

developed lhereon in two phases with Phase I approved and having saleable area of464333 sft and

future potential development of Phase 2 located at Mannivakkam -600048, Chennai. Thc land
parc€l is owred by Casa Crande Crvil Engineering Privale Limiled
( ii) Extension ofcharge by w6y ofregistercd mongage on land admeasuring 2.68 acres (excluding
area gifted to aulhoriries) excluding UDS for area sold along with the structures/buildings
consuucled o be conslnrcled. called proj€ct "Arnberley", on the said land parcel, including all the
exisling & future FSI potential loaded/to be loaded onto the sfuctures constructed/to be
constlucted lhereon, hsving saleable area of 85,934 sn located al Thazambur - 600130, Chennai.
The land paroel is own€d by Casa Grand€ Grace Private Limited and Casa Grande Enterprises LLP
(iii) Extension ofcharge by way ofretistered mortgage on land 6.28 acres (excluding area giiled to
authorilies) excluding UDS for area sold along vith lhe structures6uildings conslructed/to be

constructed, called project 'Divinity", on lhe said land parc€I, including all the existing & future
FSI potential loaded.ito be loaded onlo the structures constructed/to be constructcd thereon, having
saleable area of2,49,940 sft located at Navalur - 600130, Ch€nnai. The land parcel is owned by
Cmc€ Galed Community LLP and Casa Grande Smarl Value Homes Privale Limit€d
(iv) Extension of charge by wry of register€d mongage on land area admeasuring 23,892 sq.mtrs.
excluding tJD5 for area sold along with the structures/buildings constructed./to be consuucled.
called project 'Casagrand Royale", on lhe said land parc€I, including all the existing & future FSI

potential load€d/to be loaded onto the structures constructe(yto be constructed thereon. having
saleable areaofT (M lacs sft located at Sholinganallur - 400508, Chennai. The l6nd parcel is owned
b) Casa Crande Homes Private I.imited
(v) Extension of charge by ryay of h)pothecation and escrow over all receivable! Brising from]

sale,4ease./transfer of land/structurc/units in lhe project "ECR 14" located at East Coast Road

603112, Chennai. The land parcel is owned by Casa Grande Homes Private Limiled (CGHPL)
2. Stock and Recrivables & Mov€able propenies: Hlpothecation & escrow of receivables from
sale/leas€y'1r8[sfcr of l.nd/sructurdunits of projecl 'Plalinum', "Amberley', 'Divinily', &
'Royale".
J. Corporate Cuarantee: Casagand Premier Builder Private Limited, Casa Crande Grace Private

Limited, Casa Grande Homes Private Limited, Cesa Grande Sman Value Homes Private Limitcd,
Casa Grande Ent€rprise LLP & GIacr Gated Community LLP

906.11

R€payment Terms & Rate oflnteresl :

l. F&ility Tnc: T.rm Loan

Total Facility amount: Tl I - a 860.00 l\,lillion and'IL 2 - { 240.00 Million
2. Tenor: TL I - 54 months (final inslalment due on Dec-2026), Tl- 2 - 48 months
3. Repayment: TL I -Frincipal repayablc in 30 equal inst.lments of< 28.67 Million oach starting
f.om Jul-24 aod €nding on Dec-26
TL 2- Principal repayabl€ in 24 equal monthly instalmenls starting from 25th month from tie date
offirst disbursemant

4. Principal moralorium: TL I - Mo.atorium till Dec-22 'tl- 2 - 24 months Moratorium
5. Rate of interest: nlonlhly at lhe rale of I L65% p.a (fixed).

Kotali

Mahindra
lnvestments

Limited

1,074.70

,-':aa:
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Crss Grrnd. Civil Enginc.ring Privrt. Limited
Not$ to Finrncirl Stst.mants for tbc yaar anded 3l Msrch 2023
(All smounts are in Milliohs, unless othenrite

S.no l-ender

Disbursc
ment

Amt in
ItIn

Prrticul{rs 2023 2022 2021

9

Sundaram
BNP

Paribas

Hor,re

Finance
Limited

39.30

Borro\f,ing Entity: Casa Grende Civil Engineering Privat. Limited
Nature of Sccurity :

L PropeIty: Chargc over th€ immovable p.operty in respect ofthe land situated at (l)-S No-2 697
Pa(G.ndhi Sfeeq Eastem p6n of o*ner Use Vgp Golden Beach Uthandi Part-
II,Utiandi,600l l9,Tamil Nadu,lndi4600l I

24.80 28.43

Repaymenl T€rms & Rate oflnterest :

l. Facility T)?c: Term t an

Total Facility amount Tl I - < 35.30 Million sDd TL 2 - { 4.00 Million
2. Tenor: 120 months
J. Repaymcnt: Repayable in 120 equated lnonthly instalment
4. Rate of interest: TL-l 17.65% p.8 (variablc in line with SH-PLR%). TL-2 15.9./0 p.a- (varisblc in
line with SH.PLRTo)
Loan foreclosed on 3lst March 2023

Tata Capital
Ilousing
Finance

Limited

700.00

Bonowing Entity: Casa Grande Civil Engineering Private Limited
Naturc of Sccurity :

l. Prop€rty: R€gistored mortgage ofall that piece and parcel ofland admeasuring 5 Acr€ and 7l
crnts along with all units and sfuctue/firture structure standing there on of project "Savoye"
situateJ at Kuppusafiy Street, Karapakkam Village, Sholinganallur Taluk, Kancheepuram Districl
Ch.nnai
2. Stock & Reccivablcs & movable propertics: (i) Hypothccation of sold and unsold reccivgbles
arising out of projecl 'Savoye"
(ii) H)?odrccation receivables from sold and unsold units in the ongoing project "Casa Grande
FERNS'being constructed / constructed on land situated at Vasantharn Colony Vasuki Street,,
PerunBaluthur Village, Tambaram Taluk, Kancheepuram Dislrict, Chennai - 63.

l. Co bonower: Mr. Arun MN

225.E3l0

Repaymenl Terms and Rat€ oflnterest:
L T)?€ of Lran: Term loan Facility Amount (TL l) { 480.00 Millioo and (TL 2) < 220.00 Million
2. Term of lo6n: 54 months (including moratorium of 30 months) fiom rhe dale of firsl
disbursement (ApI 2019)

J. Repayment of loan principal: Pre-Monthly instalment fo. the tefm loan commenced from thc
date of first disburs€menl and paid till ihe principal moralorium period. And monthly instalmenl
commenced from the following montl on thc amount disbursed
Monthly inst.lment ofTL l: < 23.16 Million
Monthly instalment of TL l: < 10.6 | Million
4. Principal Moratoriumi 30 months from the date offint disbursement

5. Interesl payablc TL l: rnonthly reducing and floating rate of 14.50% p.a. (CFPLR of 17.45 %
minus 2.95% per snnum) at th€ time ofdisbursement.

TL 2: monthly reducing a,rd floating rate ot 14j0% p.a. (CFPLR of 17.45 o/o min:us 2.95o/. per
annum) at tle time ofdisbuncment.
6. lnleresl Resct -lnterest mte changes based on lh€ Changes in Prime L€nding Rale. The change in
PLR will be at the sole discretion ofTCHFL.
Loan foreclosed on 28th December 202 I
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Casa Grandc Civil Engioecring Private Limited
Notes to Finxncirl Strtements for the year ended 3l March 2023
(All anounts are in Millions, un I e ss ot he r],t i s e s I at e d)

19. Other finrrci.l lirbilities
(Canied at arnortised cost)

As at
3l March 2023 3

As at
0l ADril202l

As at
I Mrrch 2022

Interest accrued but not due

lnterest accrued and due

Accrued expenses

Redemption Premium on Debenture

Others

r 46.58

131.65

23.84

0.04

88.29 2.32

3.54

r.306.65

8.86

Totrl other Iinancirl liabililies
Current

Non current

]02.1r 103.80 1.t6
278.27

23.84

94.94

8.86

1.16

20. Provisioos

Provision for employcc bcnclits
Gratuity
Compensated absences

Totsl provisiotrs

Current

Non current

21. Other liabilities

12.4t

2.52

1.38

0.24

6.30

14.93 7.62 6.30

2.94

I1.99
0.21
'1.41

0.1I
6.t9

As st
3l Msrch 2023

As rt
3l Mrrch 2022

As st
0l ADril 2021

Advance liom customers (including cancelled customer)

Statutory dues and related liabilities
Uneamed Revenue

Liability under joint developmcnt arrangement

Corpus Fund

Others

t24.73
39.95

2,372.0t

31.80

1.67

t42.6'7

22.44

1,32'1.07

t.27
24.92

2.41

120.12

17.13

3,904.93

t4.69
21.08

2.54

Totrl othcr lirbilities
Current

Non current

2,570.r6 1,520.7E 4,080.49

1,832.92
'137.24

193.71

|,32',7.07

3,088.24

992.25

\
t)NA

As at As at As :rt
3l March 2023 f,l March2022 0l April202l
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Cese Grrndc Civil Engincering Private Lirnitcd
Notes to Finenciel StrtemcDts for the ycrr cnd.d 3l Merch 2023
(All amounts are in Millions, unless olherwise staled)

22. Trade payables
As rt

3l Merch 2023
As .t

3l Mlrch 2022
As el

0l April 2021

Trade payables

- total outstanding dues ofmicro small and medium enterprises

- total outstanding dues to others

Totrl trrde p.yrblcs

Trade payables

Trade payables to related parties

Tot.l tredc payrbles

Trade payables ageing schcdule

Totrl outstrndirg ducs ofmicro, smrll rld medium cDt.rprises
Less than I year

I -2 yea$

2-3 yeus
More than 3 yea$

Total

Totrl outstroditrg dues of others
Less than I year

I -2 years

2-3 yean

More than 3 years

Total

t88.97
462.39

15.15

409.40
t7.89

714.69

651.36 ,12{.55 7.12.58

639.83

I1.53
732.58

651.36 42.t.55 712.58

As rt
3l Mrrch 2023

As at
3l March 2022

As rt
0l April 2021

176.57

7.81

1.73

2.86

9.77

2.07

1.64

1.67

188.97 t7.89

248.00

49.90

51.47

l 13.02

236;70

55.09

62.30

55.31

4l t.96
96.60

108.50

9'1.63

111.69162.39 409.,t0

As .t
Jl Merch 2023

As at
3l NIarch 2022

As rt
0l Aoril 2021

Lease liabilities

Totrl Lerse lirbilities
Cunent

Non current

24. Revenue from contrscts with customers

'7.92 8. t.l 8.3 5

7.92 8.t{ 8.ls
0.30

7 .62 8.35

0.23

7.9t

3l March 202.1 3l lllerch 202!

Revenue from real estate development

Revenue from joint development agreement (lDA)
Revenue from construction serviccs

Totrl rcvenuc from contncts with customcrs
India

Outside lndia

Totrl rcvc[uc from cootrrcts with customcrs

Timing of rcvenue rccognition
Coods transferred at a point in time
Services transferred over time
Total revenuc from contrrcts with customers

426.02

3,673.38

17.03

672.96

1.63J.15 4,363.J7

1,633. t5 4,363.37

1,633.15 4,363.17

1,207 .13 3,673.38

17.03

422.49

2.06

14.28

t.73
r.49
0.39

15.t5

The identification of Miqo, Small and Medium Enterprises Suppliers as defined under "The Micro Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act 2006" is bascd on information available with the management. As certified by the management, on the amounts

overdue (if any) to Micro, Small and Mcdiunr Enterprises on account of principal amount, interest hirs been accrued and will be

paid to suppliers on demand of claim. The Company has not received any claim for interest from any supplier as at the balance

sheet date.

23. Lease lisbilities

I,20'.1 .t3

rr07.l3 3,6m.41

(.,,**o, ;J
\ ,.\-J.:/
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Case Grande Civil Enginecring Privale Limited
Notes to Financiel Statements for the yerr ended 3l March 2023
(All amounts are in Millions. ut ess other'\eise stated)

Other operrting rcvcnues

Modification income

Marketing commission

Cancelled customer income

Scrap sales

Totrl othcr opcrstiDg revcnucs

Totsl revenue from operations

Contract balances

7.67

0.94

2.22

2s.89 10.8J

1,659.04 4374.20

As at
3l March 2023

As at
3l March 2022

19.98

0.84

4.35

0.'t2

Cotrtrrct Nsets
Trade receivables

Unbilled revenue

CoDtract lirbilities
Uneamed Revenue

Customer advances

354.53

0.02

773.t3
150.26

2,3't2.01

124.'11

25. Other income
3l Merch 202-1 -11 Mrrc h 2022

Interest incomc

Miscellaneous income

t3.77
1.36

I15.67
5.49

26. Cost of raw materirls, components and stores consumed

t5.ll l2l.l6

3l Mrrch 202-l -ll March 2022

a. Rrw mrterirl and componcnls ronsumed
lnventory at the beginning ofthe year

Add: Purchases

Less: inventory at the end ofthe year

27. Construction activity cxpenses

62.65

|,t77.85
(144.26)

120.80

546.71

(62.65)

1,096.2{ 604.86

3l March 202J 3l March 2022
Land cost

Construction cost

Interest and finanaial charges

525.47

I,01 1.74

1,101.39

784.45

55.23

__J,5J7,;u_______l,94UZ_

28. (Incrclscy dccresse in stock offlsts, lrnd stock and work-in-progress and tredcd goods

3l March 2023 3l March 2022
a) Opcning balance

Work-in-progress

Adjustment to op€ning WIP

Totrl opening brlrltcc

2,408.54

2,408.51

3,482.55

3,482.55

3,484.43
( 14.69)

3,469.7 !

2.408.51

2,408.54

b) Closing balance

Work- in-progress

Totrl closing brhncc

c) Total difference in inventory (a) - (b)

29. Employcc benefits crperse

(1,074.01) r,061.20

3l Nlrrch 2023 3l lllarch 2{122

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident and other funds

Gratuity expenses

Employee stock option scheme

Staff welfare expenscs

46.88

0.6r
3.41

25.40

1.4'7

2.29

r.63 0.48

\

52.51 29.61

|,327.01

142.67

),t
/



Cesr Grande Civil Engineering Private Limited
Notes to Fir.nci.l Statemerts for lhe ye.r ended 3l Mrrch 2023

lAll amouhts arc in Milliot s, unless otheruise sloted)

30. Finance costs

.ll March 2023 3l March 2022

Interest on bonowings
Interest on lease liabilities
Other borrowings costs

Less: Borrowing Cost transferred to Construction activity expenses

31. Depreciation and amorrtizatio[ expense

3.16
1.21

25.23

29.60 '18.0'1

(55.23)

29.60 22.84

Jl March 2023 3l l\Iarch 2022

55.23
1.24

21.60

Depreciation ofproperty, plant and equipment

Depreciation of Right-of-use assets

32. Othcr expenses

2t.55
0.89

25.8',1

0.89

22.44 26.76

3l March 2023 3l March 2022
Power and fuel

Rates and taxes

Repairs and mai nte nance

Buildings
Vehicles

Others

CSR expenditure (refer details below)
Advertising and salcs promotion

Travelling and conveyance

Communication costs

Commission and brokerage fees

Printing and stationery

Legal and professional fees

Paymcnt to auditor (Refer details below)

Software expenses

Rcnt

Bank charges

Books and periodicals

Miscellaneous expenses

Prvment to Auditors

0.3 5

r.00

0.85

r0.08

0.04

l.l3
2.38

0.41

2.'16

0.75

0.17

0.12

1.48

0.21

0.08

0.50

0.63

0.08

0.01

0.101.71

0.01

0.01

2t.68 48.28

ll l\Iarch 2023 3l Nlarrh 2022
As auditor:
Audit fee

Io othcr crprcity:
Other services (certifi cation fees)

0.45

0.04

0.75 0.63

8.31

0.06

t0.83

8.'12

16.69

0.44

0.02

0.59

0.30

r\
\

"\-

:-\
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Casa Grande Civil Engineering Privrte Limited
Notes to Financial Statements forthe year ended Jl March 2023
(All dnounts drc ih Milliora, unless olhenaise s

Deteils of CSR erpenditure:

As per Section 135 of the Companics Act, 2013, a company, meeting the applicability threshold, needs to spend at least 2% of its
average net profit for lhe immediately prcceding three financial years on corpomte social responsibility (CSR) activities. The areas

for CSR activities are eradication of hunger and malnutrition, promoting education, art and culture, healthcare, destitute care and

rehabilitation, environment sustainability, disaster reliefand rural dsvelopment project.

3l Merch 2023 3l Merch 2022

8.72

8.72

3l Merch 2023 -ll Mrrch 2022
Curretrt income trx:
Currcnt income tax charge

Adjuslments in respect ofcuncnt income tax ofprevious year

Deferred trx:
Relating to origination and rcversal oftemporary differences

i) Property, plant and equipmcnt

ii) Non deductible expenses for tax purposcs

iii) Inventory

iv) Uneamed revenue

v) Liability undcr joint development ar.angement

vi) Bonowings
vii) Right-of-use assets

viii) Lease liability
ix) CWIP
x) Security dcposit

Ircomc trr crparsa rcported ir thc strtcmcot of prolit or loss

OCI Sectior

Net losV(gain) on renreasurements ofdefined benefit plans

Dcferred trx ch.rged to OCI

(0.27\
(t2.42)
(27.23)
(18.39)

0.32

1.89

(0.22)

0.06

69.67

(t4.22)
(0.46)

(458.59)

585.53

3.38

2.03

(0.22)

0.05

0.01 0.0t

_________12!.12________

0.52 (0.2e)

0.52 0.29

(i) Amount required to be spent by the company during the ycar
(ii) Amount ofexpcnditurc incuned / transfened to unspent CSR account
(iii) Shonfall at the end ofthe year

(iv) Total ofprevious years shonfall
(v) Reason lbr shortfall

(vi) Nrture ofCSR activities
(vii) Details ofrelatcd parD, tftusactions, e.9., contribution to a tnrst

controlled by the compaly in relation to CSR sxpenditure as p€r relevant

Accounting Standard

(viii) Where a provision is made with respect to a liability incuned by
entering into a contractual obligation, the movements in the provision during
the year should be shown separately

33. Trx cxpe[sc

30.98

cHFHNAr
(
l*
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Casa Grande Civil Engineering Privato Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 3l March 2023

lAllamounts are in Milliottj, unless otherwise slated)

Reconciliation oftar expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's domestic tax rate for 31 March 2023 and 3l
lllarch 2022

3l M.rch 2023 3l March 2022

(11.s2)

30.98
(56.25)

760.7 |
191.46

(121.19)

117.51

Adjustments recognised in the current year in relation to the curent tax ofprior years

Itrcome tax expensc rcported in the statemetrt ofprofit or loss (2s.27\ 187.18

tThe Company electe d to exercise the option pe rmitted under section I I 5BAA of the Income Tax Act, 196l as introduced by the
Ta,\ation Laws (Amendment) Ordinanca, 2019. Accordingly, the Company has recognised Provision for Income Tax for the year

and re-measured its Deferred tax asset (orland defened ta\ liability) basis th€ rate prescribed in the said section.

34. Earnings pcr share 3l March2023 3l March2022
13.15 573.53

10,000 10,000

10,000

10,000

10,000

10,000

10,000

1,37s

1,37s

10,000

57,353

57,353

a\

CHENNAI I
I

Accounting profit before income tax

Tax on accounting profit at statutory income tu rute 25 .l1yo
Tax effect on account oftransition to IND AS
Deferrcd tax eflect

Profit attributable to equity holders for basic eamings ( A )

Equity Sharcs

Number of shares at the beginning ofthe year

Add i shares issued during the year

Total Number ofshrres outslanding rt the e[d ofthe year ( B )

Weighted average number ofshares outstanding during the year - Basic

Add : Weighted average number ofshares that have dilutive effect on EPS

Weighted average number ofshares outstanding during the yesr- Diluted ( C )

Earning per share of par value INR.I0 - Brsic ( D = A / B ) (In t)
Esrning per share of par vrlue INR.l0 - Diluted ( E = A / C ) (In t)

/
t(

-r/.:,\,



Casa Grande Civil Engineering Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for thc year ended 3l March 2023
(All amounls are in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

35. Gratuity and other post-employment benefit plans

a. Defined Contribution plan:
Eligible employees receive benefits under the provident fund which is a defined contribution plan. These contributions are

made to the funds administered and managed by the Govemment oflndi4

b. Defined benefit plans - Gratuity (Non-Funded)
The company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan (Gratuity Plan) covering all eligible employees. The
Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum payment to the vesled employees on retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of
employment. Vesting occurs on completion of five years of service. Liabilities with regard to the Gratuity Plan are

The following tables set out the funded status ofgratuity plans and the amount recognized in Company's financial statemeDts

1. The amounts recognized in the Balancc Sheet are as follows:

Particulars
As at

31 March 2022
Present value ofthe obligation as at the end ofthe year

Fair value ofplan assets as at the end ofthe year

Net liability recognized in the Balance Sheet

Non-current

Current

2, Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligation

Particulars

12.4t

12.41

10.05

2.36

As at
3l March 2023

7.38

7.18

0.20

Defined benefit obligation as at beginning of the year
Current Service cost

Transfer in/(out) obligation
Interest cost

Acluarial losses(gains) arising from
- change in financial assumptions

- change in demographic assumptions

- experience variance (i.e. Actual experiences assumptions)

Past service cost

Benefits paid

Defined benelit obligation as st the end of the year

3. Expenses recognized in Statement of profit and loss Account

Particulars

7.38

2.82

6.30

2.t7

0.58

(0.36)

1.78

0.63

(0.42)

0.43

(0.42)

(0.7s)

(0.35)
12.41 7.38

As at
3l March 2023

As at
3l March 2022

Cunent Service Cost

Past Service Cost

Interest Cost

Expected retum on plan assets

Net Actuarial (gain)/loss recognised in the year

Expenses recognised in statement of Profit and Loss

Particulars

2.17

0.43

3.60

As at
3l March 2023

2.60

As at
31 March 2022

Actuarial losses/(gains) arising from
- change in financial assumptions

- change in demographic assumptions

- experience variance (i.e. Actual experiences assumptions)

Retum ou plan assets excluding amounts included in interest income
Amounls recognized in Other Comprehensive (Incomc) / Expense

(0.36)

1.78

0.63

(0.42)

(0.7s)

2.05

As at
31 March 2023

7.38

As at
31 March 2022

4, Other Comprehensive income

2.82

0.58

0.20

::\
, r--\

(1.17)



Casa Grande Civil Engineering Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for lhe year ended 3l March 2023

(All amounts are in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

5. Assumption

Particulars
As at

3l March 2023
As at

31 March 2022
Discount Rate

Salary Escalation Rate

Attrition rate

6. Sensitivity to key assumptions

7 .30v.
5.000

20.00Yo

7.30%
5.00%
2.00%

Particulars
As at

3l March 2023
As at

31 March 2022

7. Expected Future Cashflows (Undiscounted)

Particulars

12.68

2.t5Yo
12.15

-2.08%

t2.34
-0.53Yo

t2.47
0.43%

6.84

-7.40%

7.99

8.23o/o

8.00

8.38o/o

6.82

-7 .59o/o

7.43

0.70%

-0.74%

As at
3l March 2023

As at
3l March 2022

Year I Cashflow

Year 2 Cashflow

Year 3 Cashflow

Year 4 Cashflow

Year 5 Cashflow

Year 6 to Year l0 Cashflow

2.36

2.07

r.85

1.73

1.59

4.98

0.20

0.26

0.22

0.24

0.31

1.95

a. Discount rate Sensitivity

Increase by 0.5olo

(% change)

Decrease by 0.5olo

(% change)

b. Salary growth rate Sensitiviry

Increase by 0.5%
(% change)

Decrease by 0.5olo

(o/o change)

c. Withdrawal rate (W.R.) Sensitivity
W.R. x I l0%
(% change)

W.R. x 90%
(% change)

12.16

-2.030/o

12.67

2.tz%

I
(

CttE,VNA, 
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Casa Grande Civil Engineering Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 3l March 2023

(All amounls are in Millions, unless olherwise stated)

36. Leases

The Company has lease contracts for various items of buildings. Leases generally have lease terms between upto
l0 years. Generally, the Company is restricted fiom assigning and subleasing the leased assets. There are several

lease contracts that include extension and termination options and variable lease payments, which are further
discussed below.

A. Company as a lessee

Set out below are the carrying amount of right-of-use assets recognised and movements during the period:
Buildings Total

As at 01 April 2021

Additions during the year

Depreciation during the year

As at 31 March 2022

Additions during the year

Depreciation during the year

As at 31 March 2023

8.90

(0.8e)

8.90

(0.8e)

8.01 8.0r

(0.8e)

7.12

Set out belorv are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements during the period:
Buildings Total

As at 01 April 2021

Additions during the year

Accretion of interest

Payments

As at 31 March 2022

Additions during the year

Accretion of interest

Payments

As at 31 March 2023

8.35 8.3s

1.24

(1.44)
1.24

(1.44)
8.15 8.15

1.21

(1.44)
1.21

(1.44\
7.92 7.92

As at

3l March 2023

As at
3l March 2022

As at
0l April 2021

Statement of profit or loss

7.62

0.30

7.91

0.24

E.35

3l March 2023 3l March 2022
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets

Interest expense on lease liabilities
Total amount recognised in Statement of profit or loss

0.89

t.2t
0.89

t.24
2.10 2.13

Statement of cashflo*'s

3l March 2023 3l March 2022
Total cash outflow for leases

Total amount recognised in Statement of Cash Flows
( 1.44) (t.44)
(1.44) (1.44)

(0.8e)
7.12

Non-current

Current



Casa Grande Civil Engineering Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts are in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

37. Fair value measuremenls

The details offair value measurement ofCompany's financial assets/liabilities are as below:

Financial assets/liabilities measured at Fairvalue through profitfloss:
As at As at

Level 31 March 2023 3l March 2022
As at

01 April 2021
Investments in quoted investments -
mutual funds

5.00

The fair value ofthe financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
cunent transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. There have been no ransfers between
levels during the period.

The management assessed that the carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, short term investments,
loans, trade payables, borrowings and other financial assets and liabilities approximate their fair values largely due to the short.
term maturities.

Carrying Value Fair value Carrying Value Fair value
Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Ban-k balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Loans

Other financial assets

Financial Liabilities
Borrowings Qrlon-Current)
Borrowings (Current)

Trade payables

Other financial liabilities

Lease Iiability (non-current)

105.10

38.28

2,374.09

325.50

105.10

38.28

2,374.09

325.50

30.13

20.54

l,3l 8.78

396.63

30.13

20.54

1,3 I 8.73

396.63

1,868.59

524.52

651.36

278.27

7.92

1,868.59

524.52

651.36

278.27

7.92

889.67 889.67

1,030.12 1,030.12

424.55 424.55

94.94 94.94

8.14 8.14
As at

0l April 2021

Carrying Value Fair value
Financial Assets

Investments (non-cunent)
Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Loans

Other financial assets

Financial Liabilities
Borrowings (Non-Current)

Borrowings (Cunent)

Trade payables

Other financial liabilities
Lease liability (non-current)

58.79

2.60

288.85

107.99

21.77

59'1.30

732.58

7.16

8.35

58.79

2.60

288.85

107.99

21.77

597.30

732.58

7.16

8.3s

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:
.Refer note 4 with respect to investment properties
.The quoted investments (mutual frrnds) are valued using the quoted market prices in active markets.

Set out below, is a comparison by class ofthe carrying amounts and fair value ofthe Company's financial instruments:

As at As at
3l March 2023 31 March 20?2

\

\
t)

*
\

t
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Casa Grande Civil Engineering Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 3l March 2023
(All amounts are in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

38. Capital Management

The Company's objectives of capital management is to maximize the shareholder value. ln order to maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Company may adjust the retum to shareholders, issue/ buyback shares or sell assets to reduce debt. The
Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the
requirements of the financial covenants.

The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total equity plus net debt as below.
.Equity includes equity share capital and all other equity components attributable to thc equity holders
.Net debt includes borrowings (non-current and cunent), trade payables and other financial liabilities, less cash and cash

equivalents (including bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents and margin money deposits with banks)

As at As at As at
31 March 2023 3l March 2022 01 April 2021

Borrowings (non-current and current)

Trade payables

Other financial liabilities (current and non-current)
Less: Cash and cash equivalents(including balances at

bank other than cash and cash equivalents and margin

Net Debt (A)
Equity share capital

Other equity

2,393.n
65t.36
302.11

( 143.38)

t,9t9.79
424.55

103.80

(50.67)

619.07

732.58

7.t6

(61.3e)

3,203.20

0.10

1,242.15

2,397.47

0.10

1,229.94

1,297.42

0.10

655.53
Equity (B) 4,302.07 3,576.84 1,891.66
Equity plus net debt (C= A+B) 7,505.27 5,974.31 3,189.08
Gearing ratio (D = A/C) 42.68% 40.13% 40.68%

In order to achieve the objective of maximize shareholders value, the Company's capital management, amongst other things,
aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing bonowings that define capital structure
requirements. Any significant breach in meeting the financial covenants would allow the bank to call borrowings. There have
been no breaches in the financial covenants of above-mentioned interest-bearing borrowing.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the current and previous years.

39. Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Company's principal financial liabilities, comprise borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these
financial liabilities is to finance the Company's operations.

The Company's principal financial assets include loans, trade, other receivables and cash and cash equivalents and bank
balances other than cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk. credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's management oversees the management
ofthese risks and ensures that the Company's financial risk activities are govemed by appropriate policies and procedures and
that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company's policies and risk objectives.

i. Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument rvill fluctuate because of changes in
market prices. Market risk comprises two types of risk: interest rate risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and
commodity/ real-estate risk.

The sensitivity analysis in the following sections relate to the position as at March 31,2023, March 31, 2022 and April l,
2021. The sensitivity analysis has been prepared on lhe basis that the amount of net debt and the ratio of fixed ro floating
interest rates ofthe debt. The analysis excludes the impact ofmovements in market variables on the carrying values ofgratuity
and other post retirement obligations/provisions.

The below assumption has been made in calculating the sensitivity analysis:

The sensitivity ofthe relcvant profit or loss itenr is the effect ot the assumed changes in respective market risks. This is based
on the financial assets and financial liabilities heldatMarch 31,2023, March 3l,2022and April l,Z02i. ' :

)ACCo,



Casa Grande Civil Engineering Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 3l March 2023
(AIl amounts are in Millions, unle.ss otherwise slaled)

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows ofan exposure will fluctuate because ofchanges in Interest
rate. The entity's exposure to the risk of changes in Interest rates relates primarily to the entity's operating activities (when
receivables or payables are subject to different interest rates) and the entity's net receivables or payables

The Company is affected by the price volatility of certain commodities/ real estate. lts operating activities require the ongoing
development of real estate. The Company's management has developed and enacted a risk management strategy regarding
commodity/ real estate price risk and its mitigation. The Company is subject to the price risk variables, which are expected to
vary in line with the prevailing market conditions.

Interest rate sensitivity
The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates, rvith all other variables held
constant. The impact on the Company's profit before tax is due to changes in the fair value of non-current and current
borrowings and other current and non current financial liabilities.

Change in rate
Effect of prolit

before tax

31 March 2023 +lyo 0.30
-t% (0.30)

3l March 2022 +lYo 0 .23

-tyo (0.23)
01 April 2021 +l%o 0.10

-t% (0.10)

The Company invests surplus funds in liquid mutual funds. The Company is exposed to market price risk arising from
uncertainties about future values of the investment. The Company manages the equity price risk through investing surplus
funds on liquid mutual funds for short term basis.

The table below summarises the impact of increase/decrease ofthe Net Asset Value (NAV) on the profit for the year. The
analysis is based on the assumption that the NAV price would increase 5olo and decrease by 5% with all variable constant.

Change in rate
Increase/

(decrease) in
profit

3l March 2023 +sYo

-5%

+50

-5%
+5%

-5o/o

3l March 2022

ii. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss that may arise on outstanding financial instruments if a counterparty default on its obligations.
The Company's exposure to credit risk arises majorly from trade receivables/ unbilled revenue and other financial assets.

Other financial assets like security deposits, loans and bank deposits are mostly with employees, govemment bodies and banks
and hence, the company does not expect any credit risk with respect to these financial assets.

With respect to trade receivables/ unbilled revenue, the Company has constituted teams to review the receivables on peri6,Jic
basis and to take necessary mitigations, wlrerever required. The Company creates allowance for all Lrnsecured receivables
based on lifetime expected ciedit loss ('ECL').

01 April2021
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Casa Grande Civil f,ngineering Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 3l March 2023
(All amounts are in Millions, unless olherwise stated)

iii. Liquidity risk

The Company's principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents and the cash flow that is generated from
operations. The Company believes that the cash and cash equivalents is sufficient to meet its current requirements.

Accordingly no liquidity risk is perceived.

The break-up of cash and cash equivalents, deposits and investments is as below.

3l March 2023 3l March 2022 01 April 2021

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Investments

105. I 0

38.28

5.00

30.13

20.54

The table below summarises the maturity profile ofthe Company's financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are

based on contraclual undiscounted payments

Maturity
period 3l March 2023 3l Merch 2022 0l April 2021

Financial liabilities - non current
Bonowings
Lease liabilities
Other financial liabilities

Betweenl-3years
Between I - l0 years

Betweenl-3years

524.52

0.30

651.36

278.27

1,868.59

7.62

23.84

1,030.12

0.23

424.ss

94.94

597.30

732.58

7.16

21.77

8.35

R
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58.79

2.60

Financiel liabilities - current
Borrowings (cunent)

Lease liabilities
Trade payables

Other financial Iiabilities

Within a year

Within a year

Within a year

Within a year

889.67

7.91

8.86



Casa Grande Civil Engineering Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts are in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

40. First time adoption
As stated in Note I & 2, the Company has prepared its first financials statements in accordance with Ind AS. For the purposes

of transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS, the Company has followed the guidance prescribed in Ind AS l0l - First Time
adoption oflndian Accounting Standards ("lnd AS l0l), with effect from 1 April,2021 ("transition date"). For the year ended

3l March 2022, the Company had prepared its financials statements in accordance with Company's (Accounts) Rules 2014,
notified under section 133 ofthe Act and other relevant provisions ofthe Act ("previous GAAP" or "lndian GAAP).

The accounting policies set out in Note 2 have been applied in preparing the financial statements for the year ended 3l March
2023 including the conlparative information the year ended 3l MarchZlZ2,and I April2O2'1.

ln preparing its lnd AS balance sheet as at I April 2021 and in presenting the comparative information for the years ended 3 I
March 2022 and 3 I March 2023, the Company has adjusted amounts reported previously in financial statements prepared in
occordance with previous GAAP. This note explains the principal adjustments made by the Company in restating its financial
stalements prepared in accordance with previous GAAP, and how the transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS has affected
the Company's financial position and financial performance. There were no significant reconciling items betrveen cash flows
prepared under Ind AS other than those arising due to reclassification of the previous year figures to conform to lhe current
year's presentation.

Optional exemptions availed and mandatory exceptions
In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, the Company has applied the below mentioned optional exemptions and
mandatory exceptions.

A. Optional exemptions availed
(i). Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

Ind AS l0l permits a first-time adopter to elect to continue with the carrying value for all of its property, plant and equipment
as recognised in the financial statements as at the date of transition to Ind AS, measured as per the Previous GAAP and use
that as its deemed cost as at the date of transition after making necessary adjustments for de-commissioning liabilities. This
exemption can also be used for intangible assets covcred by Ind AS 38 Intangible Assets and investment property covered by
Ind AS 40 Investment Properties. Accordingly, the Company has elected to measure all of its property, plant and equipment,
intangible assets and investment property at their Previous GAAP carrying value.

(ii). Investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures snd associates

Ind AS 27 requires investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures to be recorded at cost or in accordance with Ind
AS 109 in its separate financial statements. Ilowever, Ind AS l0l provides an option to measure that investment at one ofthe
following amounts in case the Company decides to measure such investment at cost:
i. Cost as per Ind AS 27 or
ii. Deemed cost, which is:

a. Fair value at the entity's date oftransition to Ind AS
b. Previous GAAP carrying amount at that date
The Company has elected to measure its investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures using deemed cost at the
Previous GAAP carrying amount at the date of transition to Ind AS.

(iii). Share based payments
lnd AS I0l provides an option to not apply Ind AS 102 to liabilities arising from share-based payment transactions that were
settled before the date oftransition to Ind AS. The Company has elected to avail this exemption and apply the requirements of
Ind AS 102 to all such grants under the ESOP plan, which are not settled as at the date oftransition to Ind AS.
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Casa Grande Civil Engineering Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 3l March 2023

(A ll amounts are in Millions, unless othenvise slated)

(iv). Revenue from contracts with customers
Ind AS l0l provides following practical expedients when applying Ind AS I l5 retrospectively:

(a) for completed contracts, an entity need not restate contracts that begin and end within the same annual reporting period;

(b) for completed contracts that have variable consideration, an entity may use the transaction price at the date the contract

was completed rather than estimating variable consideration amounts in the comparative reporting periods; and
(c) for all reporting periods presented before the beginning ofthe first Ind AS reporting period, an entity need not disclose the
amount of the transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations and an explanation of when the entity

B. Mandatory exemptions availed

Ind AS l0l also allows first-time adopters can claim mandatory exceptions to be applied for retrosprective application of
certain requirements under Ind AS for transition from the previous GAAP:

(i) Estimates
As per Ind AS l0l, an entity's estimates in accordance with Ind AS at the date oftransition to Ind AS shall be consistent with
estimates made for the same date in accordance with previous GAAP (after adjustments to reflect any difference in accounting
policies), unless there is objective evidence that those estimates were in error. However, the estimates should be adjusted to
reflect any differences in accounting policies.

As per Ind AS l0l, where application of Ind AS requires an entity to make certain estimates that were not required under
previous GAAP, those estimates should be made to reflect conditions that existed at the date of transition (for preparing
opening Ind AS balance sheet) or at the end ofthe comparative period (for presenting comparative information as per Ind AS).
Ind.AS estimated as at 0l April 2021 are consistent with the estimates as at the same date made in conformity with previous
GAAP. The Company made estimates for following items in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition as these were not
required under previous GAAP:

-Fair valuation offinancial instruments carried at fair value through profit and loss or fair value through other comprehensive
income,

-Impairment of'financial assets based on expected credit loss model,
-Determination ofthe discounted value for financial instruments carried at amortised cost, and

Upon the assessment ofthe estimate made under previous GAAP, the Company has concluded that there was no necessity to
revise such estimates under Ind AS, other than those which are required due to application oflnd AS.

(ii) Derecognition of linancial assets and liabilities:
As per Ind AS l0l an entity should apply the recognition requirements in lnd AS 109, Financial Instruments, prospectively tbr
transaction occuning after the date of transition to lnd AS However an entity may apply the derecognition requirements
retrospectively from a date chosen by it if the information needed to apply Ind AS 109 to financial assets and financial
liabilities derecognized as a rcsult of past transaction were obtained at the time of initially accounting for those transactions.

The Company has chosen to avail the exception to apply the derecognition provision oflnd AS l0l prospectively from the
date oftransition.

(v). Business combinations
Ind AS l0l provides the option to apply Ind AS 103 prospectively from the transition date or from a specific date prior to the
transition date. The Company has elected to apply Ind AS 103 prospectively to business combinations occurring after its
transition date. Use of this exemption means that business combinations occurring prior to the transition date have not been

restated and the IGAAP carrying amounts of assets and liabilities, that are required to be recognised under lnd AS, is their
deemed cost at the date ofthe acquisition. After the date ofthe acquisition. measurement is in accordance with respective Ind
AS.
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Casa Grande Civil Engineering Private Limited
Notes to Financial Slatements for the yenr ended 31 March 2023
(All amounls are in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

(iii) Classification and measurement of financial assets:
Ind AS l0l requires an entity to classiry and measure its financial assets into amortised cost, fair value through profit or loss
or fair value through other comprehensive income based on the business model assessment and solely payment of principal
and interest ("SPPI") criterion based on facts and circumstances that exist at the date of transition. Further, the standard
permits measurement of financial assets accounted at amortised cost based on the facts and circumstances existing at the date
of transition if retrospective application is impracticable.
Accordingly, the Company has determined the classification of financial assets based on facts and circumstances that exist on
the date oftransition. Measurement ofthe financial assets accounted at amortised cost has been done retrospectively.

C. Reconciliation ofequity as previously reported under Previous GAAP to Ind AS

The following reconciliations provides the effect oftransition to Ind AS ftom previous GAAP in accordance with Ind AS l0l :

l. Total equityasat I April 2021 and 31 March 2022
2. Total comprehensive income reconciliation for the year ended 3l March 2022

{'/
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Casa Grande Civil Engineering Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 3l March 2023

(All amounts are in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

Reconciliation of equity as previously reported under Previous GAAP to lnd AS

l). Total equity as at 31 March 2022 and I April202l

Particulars
Notes

As at
31 March 2022

As at
0l April 2021

Equity as reported under previous GAAP
Ind AS adjustments
Fair value adjustrnents:

Effect ofrevenue recognition as per IND AS I l5
Cost adjustment as per IND AS I l5
Defened tax impact on the aforesaid adjustments
Gratuity Impact

Borrowings Impact

IND AS I 16 - lmpact

Mutual funcis impact

Total adjustments
Total Equity under Ind AS

(i)
(i)

(vii)
(viii)
(ii)
(iv)

1,386.01

(t,249.62)
1,030.99

52.83

I 1.34

(l.sl)

t,204.61

(3,s89.s2)

2,852.26

185.01

3.27

(lss.97)

________l"l!.01

2). l'otal comprehensivc income reconciliation for the year ended 3l March 2022

Particulars
Notes

(s48.98)

655.63

As at
3l March 2022

Profit after tax as per previous GAAP

Ind AS adjustments
IndAS I l5- Revenue recognition
IND AS I l5- Cost adjustment

Remeasurement of employee benefit obligation
Bonowings Impact

Defened tax irnpact on the aforesaid adjustments

CWIP Impact

IND AS I 16 - Impact

Total adjustments

Net Profit after tax rs per Ind AS

Other comprehensive income (net oftax)
Total comprehensive income as per Ind AS

(i)
(i)

(viii)
(ii)

(vii)
(1,

(iv) (l.5r)
392.96

I 8l .44

2,339.90
(1,821.32\

8.08

( 132. l8)

574.41

574.41
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Casa Grande Civil Engineering Private Limiled
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 3l March 2023
(All amounls are in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

D. Notes to Ind AS transition

(i). Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from real estate development is recognised at the point in time, when the control of the asset is transferred to the

customer. The performance obligation in relation to real estate development is satisfied upon completion of project work and

transfer ofcontrol ofthe asset to the customer. Under previous GAAP Revenue is recognised as per the Revised Guidance Note
issued by lnstitute ofchartered Accountants of lndia on " Accounting for Real estate transactions (Revised 2012)". As per which
revenue is recognised under the percentage ofcompletion method.

(ii). Borrowings
Under Ind AS 109 requires transaction costs incurred towards origination ofborrowings to be deducted from the carrying arr,ount

of borrowings on initial recognition. These costs are recognized in the statement of profit and loss over the tenure of the

borrowing as part of the finance cost by applying the effective interest method. Under previous GAAP, these transaction costs

were charged to statement of profit and loss on straight-line basis over the period of loan.

(iii). Property, plsnt and equipment
Under previous GAAP, (i) Land and (ii) Buildings are included as part of Property, plant and equipment. In accordance with lnd
AS thcse are classified as investment properties. The management has determined that the investment properties consist of two
classes ofassets (i) Land and (ii) Buildings based on the nature, characteristics and risk ofeach property.

(iv). Leases

Under the previous GAAP, Iessee classified a lease as an operating or a finance lease based on whether or not the lease

transferred substantially all risk and rewards incidental to the ownership of an asset. Operating lease were cxpensed in thc
statement ofprofit and loss. Pursuant to application of Ind AS - I 16, for operating leases other than those for which the Company
has opted for short-term or low value exemption, the Company has recorded a right-of-use assets. Right-of-use asset is amortised
over the lease term or useful life of the leased assets whichever is lower and lease liabilities is subsequently measured at

amortised cost and interest expense is recognized.

The Company has measured the right-of-use asset at the date of transition at its carrying amount as if Ind AS - l16 had been
applied since the commencement date of the lease and the lease liability is measured at present value of the remaining lease

payments since the date ofcommencement.

(v). Investments

The movement is relating to reclassification of investments in quoted mutual funds from Cash and Cash equivalents to Short term
Investments and the quoted investments (mutual funds) are valued using the quoted market prices in active markets. Under
previous CAAP these \\,ere valued at lower ofcost and fair value.

Indian CAAP rcquires deferred tax accounting using the income statement approach, which focuses on differences betrveen
taxable profits and accounting profits for the period. Ind-AS l2 requires entities to account for deferred taxes using the balance
sheet approach, which focuses on temporary differences between the carrying amount of an asset or liability in the balance sheet
and its tax base. The application oflnd-AS i2 approach has resulted in recognition of deferred tax on new temporary differenccs
which rvas not required under lndian GAAP. In addition, the various transitional adjustments lead to temporary differences.

(viii). Remeasurement of post employee benefits expense

Under Ind AS, rcmeasurements i.e. actuarial gains and losses and the retum on plan assct, excluding amounts include{ in the net
interest expense on tlte net defined benefit liability are recognized in other comprehensive income instead ofprofit or loss. Under
the previous GAAP, these remeasurements were forming part ofthe profit or loss for the year.

(vi), Loans and other financial assets

The movement in other financial assets is arising mainly on account of reclassification of security deposit from non-current to
ROU assets as per NDAS I16. Under previous GAAP these were accounted at cost.

(vii). Deferred taxes



Casa Grande Civil Engineering Private Limited
Not€s to Finatrcial Statcments for the year ended 3l March 2023

(All amounts are in Millions, unless olherwise slaled)

i. Names of related rties and nature of relationshi
Nrture of RelationshipName of the related Party

Casagrand Premier Builder Private Limited (Formerly known as

Casagrand Builder Private Limited)
Casa Grande Grace PriYate Limited
Casa Interior Studio Private Limited (Till3l/01/2022)
Casa Grande Propcare Private Limited (Till3ll0l/2022)
Casagrand Staylogy Private Limited

Casa Grande Homes Private Limited
Casagrand Horizons Priyate Limited
Gazy Mag P vate Limited
Casagrand Magick Rury Private Limited

Casa Grande Smart Value Homes Private Limited

Casa Grande Milestone Private Limited
Casa Cmnde zest Private Limited
Casa Crande Axiom Private Limited

Casa Grande Garden City Builden Private Limited

CasaGrande Vistaaz Private Limited
Casa Grande Coimbatore LLP
Casa Grande Enterprises LLP
Casa Grande Shelter LLP
Casa Grande Vallam LLP
Grace Cated Community LLP
Danub Homes Private Limited
Dawning Developers LLP
Casa Grande Realtors LLP
Sky Magna I-LP (Till FY 2020-21)

Casagrand Aesthetic Private Limited

Casagrand Regale Private Limited
Casagrand Dream Home Private Limited/ Casagrand Bizpark
Private Limited (10.01.2022)

Casagand Spaceintell Private Limited
Upstay Builder Private Limited (from 2211012021\

Casagrand Zingo Private Limited (from 281 I 012021)

Casagrand Exotia Privale Limited (fiom l0llll202l)
Casagrand Hyderwise Private Limited (from 3l ll2l202l)
Casagrand Everta Private Limited (from l0llll202l)
Casagrand Vivacity Priyate Limited (from 3 / I I 1202 I )
Casagrand Vivaace Private Limited (from 07 /1212021)

Casagrand Fresh Private Limiled (from 14104/2021)

SHV LPG India Private Limited (Casagrand Magnum Private
Limited W .E.F 22.02.2022)

Casagrand Anchor Private Limited (from26/1012021)

Casagrand StageT Private Limited (from 2910412022)

Casagrand Perch Builder Private Limited (from 06105/2022)
Casagrand Beacon Private Limited (from 25 /06/2022)
Casagrand Lotus Private Limited (from 161062022)

Casagrand Blue Horizon Private Limited (from 06101/2022)
Exotia Builder Private Limited (from 07 /0712022)

Flock Builder Private Limited (from 07107 /20?2)

Casagrand Fittedhomes Private Limited (from 19/0712022)

Casagrand Alphine Private Limited (from 22/0712022)
Casagrand Millenia Private Limited (from 20/03/2023)
Casagrand Astute Private Limited (frorn 22/07 /2022)

Holding Company

Fellow Subsidiaries
Fellow Subsidiaries
Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries
Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries
Fellow Subsidiaries
Fellow Subsidiaries
Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiarics

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries
Fellow Subsidiaries
Fellow Subsidiaries
Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Subsidiary

Fellorv Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellorv Subsidiaries

Fellorv Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries
Fellow Subsidiaries
Fellow Subsidiaries

,l l. Related party transactioos
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Casa Grande Civil Engineering Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 3l March 2023
(All amounts are in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

Note : Related party relationships are as identified by the management.

ii. Transactions with the related parties

Particulars 3l March 2023 3l March 2022

Nam€ ofthe related Partv Nature of Relationship
Arun MN
Dorothy Thomas

Key management personnel

Key management personnel

Blitzkrieg Technology Private Limited
Propel Holdings LLP
Iris Development LLP
Blue Sea Homes Search LLP
UKR Agency Private Limited (Till FY 2020-21)
Callante Promoter LLP
Nobilitas Home Search LLP
Sea Vierv Homes Sefich LLP
Solace Caled Community LLP
Venerate Homes Search LLP
Zest Homes Search LLP
Casagrand Suprcme Home LLP
AAK Realty Service LLP
Arun Hope Foundation

Casagrand Millenia Private Limited
Casagrand Brightkids Private Limited
Syona Cosmetics Private Limited
Chengalpattu Warehousing Parks Private Limited
Thinksai Softrvare Privare Limited (Till FY 2021-22)
Arun Family Trusteeship LLP
Casagrand Arun MN Academy Foundation

Casa Interior Studio Private Limited (Frcm 0l10212022)

Casa Crande Propcare Private Limited (From 0l102/2022)
Casagrand Starpark Private Limited
Casagrand Luxor Private Limited
Chengalpattu Logistics Parks Private Limited
Casa Grande Panache Private Limited (Till Fy 2021-22)

Entities in rvhich key management

personnel
exercise signifi cant infl uence

a) Property development income

Casagrand Premier Builder Private Limited (Formerly known as

Casagrand Builder Private Limited)
Casa Crande Shelter LLP
Casa Grande Homes Private Limited
Casa Grande Grace P vate Limited
Dawning Developers LLP
Casa Grande Axiom Private Limited
Danub Homes Private Limited

c) Reimbursement of expetrses

Casa Interior Studio Private Limited
Casagrand Premier Builder Private Limited (Formerly known as

Casagrand Builder Private Limited)

t2.73

8.44
0.95

204.65
32.44

I t2.32

I .39

81.37

0.39

83.20

99.53

2,"2.95

134.59

0.94

,/

328.10
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Casa Grande Civil Engineering Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statemerts for the year ended 3l March 2023
(All omounls are in Millions, unless otheneise stdled)

Particulars 3l March 2023 3l March 2022
b) Reimbursement ofexpetrses - Recovery

AAK Realty Services LLP
Casa Grande Axiom Private Limited
Casa Grande Homes Private Limited
Casagrand Aesthelic Private Limiled
Danub Homes Private Limited
Gazy Mag Private Limited
Casagrand Magick Rufr Private Limited
Casa Crande Milestone Private Limited
Casagrand Millenia Private Limited
Casa Grande Sman Value Homes Private Limited
Casagrand Premier Builder Private Limited (Formerly known as

Casagrand Builder Private Limited)
Casa Crande Zest Private Linlited
Casagrand l{orizons Private Limited
Grace Gated Conrmunity LLP
Casagrand Staylogy Private Limited
Casa Grande Grace Privale Limited

c) Expenses

Casa Grande Propcare Private Limited
Casa Grande Enterprises LLP

d) Loan received

Grace Gated Community LLP
Casa Grande Axiom Private Limited
Dawning Developers LLP
Casa Grande Homes Private Limited
Casa Grande Garden City Builders Private Limiled
Casa Grande Crace Private Limited
Danub Homes Private Limited
Gazf Mag Private Limited
Casagrand Vistaaz Private Limited
Casagrand Magick Rury Private Limited
Casa Grande Milestone Private Limited
Casa Grande Realtors LLP
Casa Grande Shelter LLP
Casa Grande Smart Value Homes Private Limited
Casa Grande Vallam LLP
Casa Grande Zest Private Limited
Casagrand Premier Builder Private Limited (Formerly known as

Casagrand Builder Private Limited)
Casagrand Aesthetic Private Limited
Iris Developmenl LLP
Casagrand Fittedhomes Private Limited
Casagrand Horizons Private Limited
Casagrand Vivaace Private Limited
Casagrand Millenia Private Limited

(13.07)

(18.24)
(22.86\

(86.27)

(38.e8)

(2.te)
(4s.81)
(46.8e)

(25.3 t)

(27.86\
(0.e3)

(31.s7)

(15.54)

(19.04)

(25.34)
(20.74)

(7.e3)

(0.18)

(9.44\

2t8.52
t2'7.16

4t.66
380.43

556.98

3.34

262.97

51.t0
9.76

I .45

96.10

24.06

0.16

0.01

0.01

0.82

140.31

637 .48

284.81

4.64

t2.16

I 1.39

104.03

2.16

3.27

67.50

2.43

1,638.5 I

l18.69
0.10

(7.97)
(s.76)
(0.07)

19.57

55.69

19.08

\\LI\NF\



Casa Grande Civil Engineering Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 3l March 2023
(All amounls are in Millions, unless othenrise slated)

Particulars 3l March 2O23 3l March 2O22

e) Income
Casagrand Millenia Private Limited

f) Loans given

Casagrand Premier Builder Private Limited (Formerly known as

Casagrand Builder Private Limited)
Casagrand Vistaaz Private Limited
Danub Homes Private Limited
Casagrand Millenia Private Limited
Casa Grande Enterprises LLP
Crace Cated Community LLP
Casa Crande Homes Private Limited
AAK Realty Services LLP
Casagrand Anchor Private Limited
Casa Grande Axiom Private Limited
Casagrand Magick Ru$, Private Limited
Casa Grande Propcare Private Limited
Casa Grande Realtors LLP
Casa Grande Zest PriYate Limited
Gallante Promoter LLP
Casa Grande Shelter LI-P
Casagrand Aesthetic Private Limited
Iris Development LLP
SHV LPG India Private Limited (Casagrand Magnum Private
Limited w .E.F 22.02.2022)

Particulars

2,267 .38

5.3'7

183.14

301.57

33.28

1.03

t4.25
32.45

3.54

16.56

0.33

2.82

94.70

4.08

0.24

428.72

l.47
58.84

9.94

2.30

0.09

264.26

0.01

3l March 2023 3l Marchz0Zz
g) Interest expenses

Grace Gated Community LLP
Danub Homes Private Limited
Casa Grande Smart Value Homes Pdvate Limited
Casagrand Aesthetic Private Limited
Casagrand Premier Builder Private Limited (Formerly known as

Casagrand Builder Private Limited)
Casa Grande Realtors LLP
Casa Grande Garden City Builden Private Limited
Casa Grande Homes Private Limited
Casa Grande Shelter LLP

16.60

6.70

6.90

4.83

23.15

2.4s

0.09

45.45

3.71

14.t4
3.19

0.16

33. l0
3.06
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Casa Grande Civil Engineering Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statemerts for the year ended 3l March 2023

(All amounts are in Millions, unless othetwise stated)

Particulars 3l March 2O23 3l March 2022
h) Interest income

Casagrand Anchor Private Limited
Casa Grande Carden City Builders Private Limited
Casa Crande Magick Rury Pdvate Limited
Casa Gmnde Milestone Private Limited
Casa Crande Vallam LLP
Casagrand Millenia Private Limited
Casagrand Vistaaz Private Limited
Danub Homes Private Limited
Gallante Promoter LLP
Cazy Mag Private Limited
AAK Realty Services LLP
Casa Grande Axiom Private Limited
Casa Grande Grace Private Limited
Casa Grande Zest PriYate Limited
Casagrand Prcmier Builder Private Limited (Formerly known as

Casagrand Builder Private Limited)
Casagrand Fresh Private Limited
Czsagrand Horizons Private Limited
Casagrand Vivaace Private Limited
Dawning Developers LLP

iii. Balances outstanding at the end of the year
Particulars

92.19 57 .69

2.17
1.86

0.12

2.72

9.89

28.86

48.12

17.79

0.49

23.03

0.0r

0.02

I .00

I1.59

3l March 2023 3l March 2022
a) Trade receivables

Casa Grande Axiom Private Liniled
Casa Grande Grace Private Limited
Casa Grande Coimbatore LLP
Casagrand Millenia Private Limited

b) Short term Loans and advances
Gazy Mag P vate Limited
Casagrand Magick Rury Private Limited
Casa Grande Milestone Private Limited
Zest Home Search LLP
Danub Homes Private Limited

AAK Realty Services LLP
Casagrand Anchor Private Limited
Casa Grande Garden City Builden Private Limired
Casa Grande Vallam LLP
Casa Crande Zest PriYate Limited
Casagrand Vistaaz Private Limited
Gallante Promoter LLP
Blue Sea Homes Search LLP
Casa Grande Axiom Private Limited
Casagrand Premier Builder Private Limited (Formerly known as

Casagrand Builder Private Limited)
Casagrand Horizons P vate Limited
SHV LPC India Private Limited (Casagrand Magnum private

Limited W.E.F 22.02.2022)

Darvning Developers LLP
Iris Developmcnt LLP i
Nobilitas Home Search LLP
Sea View Homc Search LLP
Solace Gatcd Communily LLP
Veneratc l-lomes Search LLP

59.16

24.29

157.59

3t2.24
59.16

l0 t.l0

71.74

l.l9
0.86

99.00

16.8s

502.98

0.73

9.14

0.02

I18.16

0.02

l4.s I

0.01

lL7.96
,3.98

0.02

0.02

0.02

0.03

2.65

83.93

7 .27

0.86

372.98

0.24

486.41

14.5 5

20.1I
0.09

211 .7 5

I17.83

0.02

0.02

0.02

0.02

0.03

I,4t0.77
5.77

6.96
2.41

2.39

9.3 8

27 .96

I 8.31

3.40

0.26

0.61

24.2t
46.80

2.08

i



Casa Grande Civil Engineering Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 3l March 2023
(AIl amounts are in Millions, unless othennise slated)

Particulars 3l March 2023 3l March 2022

c) Interest receivablc
Casa Grande Smart Value Homes Private Limited
Casagrand Anchor Private Limited
Casa Grande Garden City Builders Private Limited
Casa Grande Magick Rury Private Limited
Casa Crande Milestone Private Limited
Casa Grande Vallam LLP
Casagrand Millenia Private Limited
Casagrand Vistaaz Private Limited
Danub Homes Private Limited
Gallante Promoter LLP
Gazy Mag Private Limited
AAK Realty Services LLP
Casa Grarde Axiom Private Limited
Casa Grande Grace Private Limited
Casa Grande Zest PriYate Limited
Casagrand Premier Builder Private Limited (Formerly known as

Casagrand Builder Private Limited)
Casagrand Fresh Private Lirnited
Casagrand Vivaace Private Limited
Dawning Developers LLP

d) Tradc payables

Casagrand Staylogy Private Limited
Casa Grande Enterprises LLP
Casa Grande Propcare Private Limited

e) Interest payable

Danub Homes Private Limited
Casa Crande Smart Value Homes Private Limited
Crace Gated Community LLP
Casagrand Aeslhetic Private Limiled
Casagrand Premier Builder Private Limited (Formerly known as

Casagrand Builder Private Limited)
Casa Grande Realtors LLP
Casa Grande Garden City Builders Private Limited
Casa Grandc Homes Private Limited
Casa Grande Shelter LLP

r 49.88
52.56

57 .69

2.17

1.86

0.12

2.72

9.89

28.86

48.12

20.82

0.49

t.7 5

3.45

23.94

0.09

33.10

3.06

8.81

I .03

0.43

t.57
5.58

0.05

0.61

4.34

11.28

0.84

23.03

0.01

0.19

3.86

8.45

l.l9
40.53

4.91

78.55

6.77

4.08

0.15

0.16

0.01

4.97

6.5 5

0.01

1.05

1.97

t...

'/.l;v
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Casa Grande Civil Engineering Privat€ Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 3l March 2023
(All amounts are in Million,g, unless otheruise staled)

Particulars 3l March 2023 3l March 2022
f) Sbort Term Borrowings

Casa Grande Realtors LLP
Casa Grande Garden City Builden Private Limited
Grace Gated Community LLP
Casagrand Aesthetic Private Limiled
Casagrand Premier Builder Private Limited (Formerly known as

Casagrand Builder Private Limited)
Iris Development LLP
Casa Grande Smart Value Homes Private Limited
Casa Grande Grace Private Limited
Casa Crande Homes P vate Limited
Casagrand Fittedhomes Private Limited

g) Advance from customer
Casa Crande Homes Private Limited
Casa Grande Shelter LLP

h) Investment
Casagrand Anchor Private Limited

i) Share capital
Casagrand Prernier Builder Private Limited (Formerly known as

Casagrand Builder Private Limitcd)

52.74

35.00
223.30

22.06

51.29

237 .65

t t7 .07

543.81

0.10
'1 .89

69.81

2.82

0.10

0.10

0.10

0.r0

>-.-/a

2,A)
an'***)

6
,\

t3.70
8.47

7 .71

0.01

\



Casa Grande Civil Engineering Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts are in Millions, unless othena,ise stated)

As at
31 March 2022

Details of Contingent liability more than 10 Mn

Particulars

138.48

197.39

339.99

33s.88 339.99

As at
31 March 2023

I ) Company received income tax assessment orders for Assessment year 201 7- I 8 , whereby the income tax officer disallorved
expenditure amounting to t I10.48 Mn (demand value being { 63.62 Mn). Company appealed with The Commissioner of
Appeals against these assessment older. Consequently, carried forward loss is reduced by the same amount. Pending the
outcome of the appeal, company has not recognised the income tax liability in its accounting books to the extent of carried
forward Loss. The mcnagement ofthe cornpany is positive about the outcome ofappeal.

2) Company received income ta"\ assessment orders for Assessment year 2018-19 , whereby the incorne tax officer disallowed
expenditure amounting to { 131.74 Mn (demand value being { 72.06 Mn. Company appealed vrith The Cornmissioner of
Appeals against these assessment order. Consequently, canied forward loss is reduced by the same amount. Pending the
outcome of the appeal, company has not recognised the income tax liability in its accounting books to the extent of carried
forward Loss. The management ofthe company is positive about the outcome ofappeal.
3) Case filed by Mr. K. Ganesan & V. Mahalakshrni, Based on the order passed by Rera Adjudication officer. The company
filed the appeal before Rera Tribunal and paid Refund amount as deposit. Further the Complainant claim higher
compensation and filcd appeal before High Court and the case is pending before Hob'ble High court

4) Case filed by Mr. P.Murugan & D.Arul for declaring the sale deed dated l9 Jlme 2018 which executed in favour ofCasa
Grand as null & void and Order of Injunction restraining Casa Grand along with other defendants v.i.z., G.Suriyaprakash, R.
Karpagam, S. Aravindh & G. Sasikala from interfering peaceful possession & alienating/encumbering the suit property
measuring an extent of5 Cents in S.No. 5216 situated at karapakkam Village. The Case is pending before the court.

Note - *It is not practicable for the Company to estimate the timing of cash outflows, if any, in respect of above matters
pending resolution of the respcctive proceedings.

We have ongoing disputes with direct tax authorities relating to tax treatment ofcertain items in the Company.
These mainly include timing difference ofexpenses claimed, tax treatment ofcertain items of income/expense, etc. in their tax
computation.

ffi

42. Commitments and contingencies
(a) Commitments

Estimated amounts of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for:
(i) Capital expenditure commitments: (31 March 2023 - Nil ; 3l March 2022 - NiD

(b) Contingent liability
(i) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts:

As at
Particulars 3l March 2023

Income tax
Other matters

As at
3l March 2022

:a--'*-l

ol$F\
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Casa Grande Civil Engineering Private Limiled

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(A ll amounts are in Millions, unless otherwise staled)

43. Segment reporting

The Group is into the business ofreal estate development hence segment reporting as per Ind AS 108 is not applicable

44. Ratio analysis and its elements

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Ratio Numcrator Denominator
As at 31

March
2023

As at 31

March
2022

Variance (7o)
Reason for

change

2023 vs 2022 2023 vs 2022

Current ratio

Debt- Equity Ratio

Debt Service

Coverage ratio

Retum on Equity
ratio

Inventory
Tumover ratio

Trade Receivable

Tumover Ratio

Net Profit ratio

Return on Capital
Employed

Retum on

Investnrent

Current Assets

Net Profits after taxes

- Preference Dividend

Cost of goods sold

Net credit sales =
Gross credit sales -

sales retum

Net credit purchases =

Gross credit purchases ,

purchase retum

Net sales = Total sales .

sales retum

Net Profit

Eamings before
interest and 1axes

Interest (Finance

Income)

Current Liabilities

Shareholder's Equity

Debt service = Interest

& Lease Payments +

Principal Repayments

Average Shareholder's
Equity

Average Inventory

Average Trade
Receivable

lAverage 
Trade

lPayables

Working capital =
Current assets - Current
liabilities

Net sales = Total sales -

sales retum

Capital Employed =
Tangible Net Worth +
Total Debt + Deferred
Tax Liability

Investment

2.07

1.93

0.12

0.01

2.94

2.19

0.47

0.01

0.01

0.00

1.56

0.61

3.58

0.94

1.39

0.1 3

0.25

0.00

-26.60%

23.720/o

-78.95%

-98.36%

-57.14%

-17.88%

132.980/"

-96.00%

NA

(viii)

Trade Payable

Tumover Ratio

Net Capital
Tumover Ratio

Total Debt

Eanrings for debt
service = Nel profit
after taxes + Finance

Cost + Non-cash

operating expenses

0.51

2.82

0.57

t.l9

-66.19%

-92.3t%

/.

c\

i
:Ni{A\

\:.:



Casa Grande Civil Engineering Private Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts are in Millions, unless olheruise stated)

Explanation for Variance in ratios by more than 25y"
l. March 2023 vs March 2022

i) Decrease in Current ratio is due to increase in cunent liabilities

ii) Decrease in Debt Service Coverage ratio is due to lower profit during the year

iii) Decrease in Retum on Equity ratio is due to lowcr profit during the year

iv) Decrease in Inventory Tumover ratio is due to decrease in purchases during the year

v) Increase in Trade Payable Tumover Ratio is due to increase in purchases during the year

vi) Decrease in Net Capital Tumover Ratio is due to decrease in sales during the year

vii) Decrease in Net Profit ratio is due to decrease in profit

viii) Decrease in Retum on Capital Employed is due to decrease in Eamings before interest and taxes

45. Other statutory information
(i) The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against The Group for
holding any Benami property.

(ii) The Company do not have any transactions with companies struck off.

(iii) The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period,

(iv) The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto cunency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

(v) The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(lntermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalfofThe
Group (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behatfofthe Ultimate Beneficiaries

(vi) The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign cntities (Funding Party) with
the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that The Group shall:

(a) directly or indireclly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalfofthe
Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalfofthe Ultimate Beneficiaries,

(vii) The Company have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrenclered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the lncome Tax Act, 196l (such as, searclr or survey or any
other relevant provisions ofthe Income Tax Act, l96l

46. Expenditure in foreign currency
The company has not made any expenditure in foreign currency ($



Casa Grande Civil Engineering Private Limited

Notes to Financial Stalements for the year ended 3l March 2023
(All amottnls are in Millions, to ess othervise st.tled.)

47. Code on Social Security

The Code on Soaial Security, 2020 ('Code') relating to employee benefits during employment and post-employment benefits
received Presidential assent in September 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of lndia. However, the date on
which the Code will come into effect has not been notified and the final rules/interpretation have not yet been issued. The
Company will assess the impact ofthe Code when it comes into effect and will record any related impact in the period the Code
becomes effectiYe.

As per our report ofeven date

For CNGSN & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number : 049155

N'Ganga ran

Partner

Membership Number : 0l 1205

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For Casa Grande Civil Engineering Private Limited
CIN : U45200TN2013PTC094 127

nMN Raghunathan

Place : Chennai

Dare:09.08.2023

Director
DIN: 00793551

Sumanth Krishna
Director

DIN: 07640054

Place : Chennai

Date:09.0E.2023
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